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Abstract

There is little known about the role of accounting information in terms of its ability to explain changes to the security prices of listed companies on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). Almost all evidence in this area is obtained from the United States or Western European countries which have sophisticated markets compared to most developing countries. This work investigates the value relevance of accounting data in the Nigerian stock market, with a view to determining whether accounting information has the ability to capture data that affect share prices of firms listed on the NSE. It also examines the difference in perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of various items of financial statements in equity valuation. This study used secondary and primary data to investigate the value relevance of accounting numbers. Secondary data were obtained from the Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, Annual Financial reports of companies quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange, the Nigerian Stock Market Annual and primary data were obtained through survey questionnaires administered on the respondents.  The methods used for gauging information content of various accounting numbers were Ordinary Least Squared (OLS), Random Effects Model (REM), Fixed Effects Model (FEM) and Independent - Samples t-Test. The findings show that there is a significant relationship between accounting information and share prices of companies listed on the NSE. Dividends are the most widely used accounting information for investment decisions in Nigeria, followed by earnings and net book value. The accounting information of manufacturing companies is more informative in the NSE. The study also finds that a significant negative relationship exists between negative earnings and share prices of companies listed on Nigerian Stock Exchange. It equally observes that there is no significant difference between the perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of accounting information. The study therefore suggests that the firms should improve the quality of earnings as manipulated earnings (of which dividends are sub-sets) have large effects on share prices. Moreover, there should be firm and stiff penalty by the national standards setters for manipulating earnings in the Nigerian stock market. It is also recommended that all companies listed on Nigerian Stock Exchange should prepare Simplified Investor’s Summary Accounts (SISA) with emphases on the most widely used accounting information along the required mandatory detailed financial statements to suit Nigerian peculiarities.  This is expected to remove information over-load particularly for non-accountants and non-financial analysts. The afore-mentioned measures are anticipated to increase investors’ confidence in accounting numbers and by extension the economic growth in Nigeria.
Key Words: Value Relevance, Stock Exchange, Accounting Information, Investor Perception and Financial Statement.
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Definition of Terms

Accounting information: This is quantitative written information contained in a complete or partial financial report –balance sheet or profit and loss account or fund flow statement.

Book Value: It is an accounting concept which tends to put a value on assets after making provision for depreciation.  It is total equity divided by the number of shares outstanding. It is the original price paid for the assets reduced by any allowable depreciation on the assets. 

Dividends: This is cash dividends. Money paid to stockholders, normally out of the company's current earnings or accumulated profits.


Earnings: The amount of profit that a company produces during a specific period, which is usually defined as a quarter (three calendar months) or a year payment. Earnings typically refer to after-tax net income. 

Financial Accounting Standards Board: This is a designated private sector organization in the US that establishes financial accounting and reporting standards.
Financial Statements: Statement of the accounting policies; the balance sheet as at the last day of the year; a profit and loss account or, in the case of a company not trading for profit, an income and expenditure account for the year; 
notes on the accounts;  the auditors reports; the directors’ report; a statement of the source and application of fund; a value added statement for the year; a five – year financial summary; and in the case of a holding company, the group financial statements as stipulated in CAMA, 1990
Individual Investor: Non- institutional investor who invests in listed firm on Nigerian Stock Market. 

Institutional Investor: Corporate organization who invests in other listed firm on Nigerian Stock Market. 
International Accounting Standards Board: This is an independent, privately-funded accounting standard-setter based in London, England
Market value: This is the current price at which securities are bought and sold in the market. It is the price the market assigns to the company’s share.
Nominal Data: A set of data is said to be nominal if the values / observations belonging to it can be assigned a code in the form of a number where the numbers are simply labels. 
Ordinal Data: A set of data is said to be ordinal if the values / observations belonging to it can be ranked (put in order) or have a rating scale attached. You can count and order, but not measure, ordinal data.
Response Rate: In survey research, the actual percentage of questionnaires completed and returned.

Stock Exchange: Stocks are listed and traded on stock exchange which is an entity a corporation or mutual organization that specializes in the business of bringing buyers and sellers of the organizations to a listing of stocks and securities together.
Stock Market: This refers to entire market of equity for trading in the shares and derivatives of the various companies. 
Value Relevance: Ability of accounting information to capture or summarize share price of firm listed on the stock market.

Abbreviations

API :


Abnormal Performance Index 

CAMA:

Companies and Allied Matters Act

ECM:


 Error Components Model

FASB :

Financial Accounting Standards Board
FEM:


Fixed Effects Model

IASB:


International Accounting Standards Board
LDSP:


Last day share price

NASB:


Nigerian Accounting Standards Board 

REM


Random Effects Model

RIVM:


Residual Income Valuation Model 
VRBV: 

Book Value per Share

VRE:

 
Earnings per Share
VRD:


Divided per Share
SEC:


Securities and Exchange Commission
CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

1.1
Background to the Study

Accounting provides a vital service to broad and diverse users. Investors use financial accounting information for investment decisions; government agencies need it particularly for tax purposes while regulatory agencies use it to determine whether existing statutory pronouncements are complied with, among others (Kajola and Adedeji, 1999).  According to Meyer (2007:2), “accounting plays a significant role within the concept of generating and communicating wealth of companies”. Financial statements still remain the most important source of externally feasible information on companies.  Nevertheless, in the wake of the recent accounting scandals and economic meltdown where billions of naira of investment and retirement wealth have disappeared, the very integrity and survivability of the value relevance of this service has been called to question. 
Value relevance is defined as the ability of accounting numbers contained in the financial statements to explain the stock market measures (Beisland, 2009). Accounting data, such as earnings per share, is termed value relevant if it is significantly related to the dependent variable, which may be expressed by price, return or abnormal return (Gjerde, Knivsfla and Saettem, 2007).  
Studies on value relevance of accounting information are motivated by the fact that listed companies use financial statements as one of the major media of communication with their equity shareholders and public at large (Vishnani and Shah, 2008).  For instance, in Nigeria, Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), (1990) and the subsequent amendments require the Directors of all companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange to prepare and publish annually the financial statements. Beyond this, the Nigerian Stock Exchange mandates all companies listed on first tier market to submit quarterly, semi-annual and annual statements of their accounts to the Stock Exchange. Companies on second tier market are to submit their statements of accounts annually to Stock Exchange (Osaze, 2007). Accounting information is any data or information obtains from the accounting system of a firm whether contained in a financial statement, a special report, or verbal statement (William, 1968). However, for the purpose of this research, accounting information refers to written information contained in a complete or partial financial report –balance sheet or profit and loss account or fund flow statement. This study investigates whether these various items of financial statements are value relevant in the Nigerian Stock Exchange or not.  
The Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE) commenced operation in 1961with only 19 securities worth N80million. As at May 2009, the number of listed securities had increased to 294, made up of 86 Government Stocks with Industrial Loans Stocks and 208 Equity/ Ordinary Shares(including emerging market) with a total market capitalization of N9.45 trillion (The Nigerian Stock Exchange, Factbook, 2009). However, the Nigerian Stock Exchange still seems to have a long way to go when compared with developed stock markets (Ologunde, Elumilade and Asaolu, 2006).  Nigerian Stock Exchange, as a medium of funds mobilization for economic growth may not function well without relevant and reliable accounting information.  
The researcher is thus motivated to study the extent to which accounting information summarizes stock prices in the Nigerian stock market as an indicator of value relevance. The study of likelihood of the market prices of stock listed in the Nigerian Stock Exchange being a reflection of accounting information is very essential to investors as well as policy makers. Recent evidence shows that stock markets have positive impact on economic growth (Healy and Williston, 2005 and Charles, 2008). In a bid to corroborate or repudiate the afore-mentioned, the perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of various items of financial statements for equity valuation is also considered.
While there have been a number of studies on this topic in developed countries (Collins, Maydew and Weiss, 1997; Lev and Zarowin, 1999; Francis and Schipper, 1999; Beisland, Hamberg and Navak, 2010), one is not aware of any expansive study that has explored the subject of value relevance of accounting information in Nigeria.  It has not been comprehensively researched primarily because of problems with data availability (Negah 2008). Literature on capital research in accounting in Nigeria is so scanty and insufficient that it is difficult to determine value relevance of accounting information in this country. In Nigeria, fairly related literature are on accounting systems (Jagetia and Nwadike, 1983); corporate financial reporting (Wallace, 1988); Weak Form Efficiency of the Nigerian Stock Market: Further Evidence (Olowe, 1999); communications in accounting: problems and solutions (Adeyemi and Ogundele, 2003); relevance of financial statement to stakeholders’ investment decisions (Kantude, 2005); determinants of upward and downward trending of the stock market prices (Nwude, 2010). The above mentioned studies provide no significant validity of existing empirical evidence of value relevance of accounting information in the developing Nigerian Stock Market. 
As a result, the study attempts to fill the gap in literature by investigating the ability of accounting information to capture or summarize information that affects equity value by examining the relationship between accounting numbers and share prices in the Nigerian Stock Exchange. This in turn is expected to accelerate development of the Nigerian stock market. 

1.2
Statement of Research Problem

Stock markets worldwide had turbulent time in 2008 which brought value relevance of accounting information under severe criticisms. There are some concerns that accounting theory and practice have not kept pace with rapid economic and high-technology changes which invariably affect the value relevance of accounting information. The claim is that financial statements are less relevant in assessing the fundamental market value of service-oriented companies, which are by nature    high-technology driven. According to Sutton (1997:1), “while accounting can be an important factor in some decisions, accounting that masks or fails to capture meaningful information for the benefit of all investors is not sound and puts investors at risk”.  This will make those who have money to lend and invest to take it to where their need for accounting information is met (Germon and Meek, 2001). The value and the quality of accounting information are determined by how well it meets the needs of users (Khanagha, 2011). Therefore, the flow of reliable information is crucial to the growth of the Nigerian Stock Exchange - without it, savers would simply keep their hard-earned savings under their mattress.

 It may not be an overstatement to say that Nigerian Stock Exchange will not function well without relevant and reliable accounting information. Deficiency in Nigerian Stock Exchange will affect Nigerian economy because capital market is the engine of economic growth (Okeke, 2004). Hence, the study of whether the market prices of stock listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange reflect accounting information is not only important to investors but also crucial to Nigerian economic growth. 
Negah (2008) asserts that studies on the value relevance of accounting numbers in emerging markets are limited. He further claims that the scanty literature replicates works done in mature markets and that closer examination of these works reveals that they face both epistemological and empirical challenges. In other words, accounting for a significant portion of the existing value relevance studies in capital market research are works carried out in the developed economy. However, it is evident that these studies are not free of problems and challenges that call for further examination (Holthausen and Watts, 2001). For instance, most of these studies were carried out in United States of America and United Kingdom that have developed stock markets and focused exclusively on earnings and book value to explain share price behavior.
Besides, value relevance research is a field in which the empirical results are sometimes mixed. The results presented in the literature are contradictory. The belief is that the divergence of opinions is somewhat due to econometric problems adopted in these studies.  Particularly the deviation of the characteristics of accounting data from the assumptions of the applied methods and the misuse of statistical indicators led to contradicting inferences in these literatures. It is important to investigate whether the result will agree or digress from the previous studies.

Moreover, there have been arguments about the relevance and suitability of accounting information in many developing countries. The role of accounting information in these economies still remains an unanswered question. There have been declarations that in many of these countries, accounting information tends to have little relevance to the local environment. Instead, they tend to be obsolete and are based on the system of these countries’ colonial past. These happen despite the fact that Briston (1978), had warned the preparers of accounting information in the emerging world to be cautious of assuming that the institutions of the developed countries can be transplanted to their countries. In Nigeria, for instance, International Accounting Standards (IAS) and the accounting standards of UK have had tremendous influence on accounting practices and standards–setting in the country (Wallace, 1988). The afore-mentioned statements were offered as accounting standards governing reporting in Nigeria during our sample period (2002 – 2008) exhibit greater similarity to UK and IAS. To the best of our knowledge, the accounting professions in this country have made no substantial attempts to refute this opinion.

However, are these accounting practices and standards really relevant in Nigerian context? Given the above, it is pertinent to carry out a detailed assessment of the value relevance of accounting information in meeting Nigerian emerging stock market speedy needs for growth and development.
Although much has been written on the subjects of value relevance of accounting information using United States of America (USA) and United Kingdom (UK) data, empirical research in this area has been less forthcoming in developing countries. Hence, the research on the relationship between the market prices of stock listed in the Nigerian stock market and accounting information is not only of vital importance to investors but also to policy makers. The implications are enormous for foreign and local investors who make their decisions based on accounting information. Stakes are equally high for policy makers who consider information as very important to capital market development (Ologunde et al, 2006), and the stock market as the primary vehicle for transforming the Nigerian economy to economic prosperity (Okereke-Onyiuke, 2008).

Furthermore, all the previous studies relate to a certain time frame and given the dynamic nature of accounting, there is a continued need to fill the gaps of what is known about the state of value relevance of accounting information in Nigeria. In the light of the above, the following problems are identified as at the time of this research:

1. There is yet not a consensus  as to the extent to which accounting information summarizes stock prices  in the Nigerian stock market;

2. The degree of difference between the perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of various items of financial statements to equity valuation is unresolved and

3. The extent of difference between value relevance of accounting number of manufacturing and service companies is not yet known.
 1.3
Objectives of the Study
The broad objective of this study is to investigate the dynamic relationship between accounting numbers and market values of listed companies on the Nigerian Stock Exchange.  The specific objectives based on the identified problems are to:

1. Analyze the ability of accounting information to affect share prices of firms listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange;
2. Determine the differences between the accounting information of manufacturing and service sectors in Nigeria;

3. Analyze the relationship between negative earnings and market values of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange and
4. Examine the differences in perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of financial statements in equity valuation.
1.4
Research Questions 

In the light of the above, the following specific research questions are formulated:

1. How well does accounting information affect share prices of firms listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange? 
2. Are there differences between the value relevance of accounting information of manufacturing and service sectors in Nigeria?

3. Are there relationship between negative earnings and market values of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange?        
4. Are there significant differences in perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of financial statements in equity valuation?
1.5
Research Hypotheses
In order to validate data analysis, the following null hypotheses were tested:

H0:
Share prices of firms listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange are not significantly affected by the accounting information;

H0:
There are no significant differences in value relevance of accounting information of manufacturing and service sectors in Nigeria;

H0:
There are no significant relationship between negative earnings and market values of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange and

H0:
There are no significant differences in perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of financial statements in equity valuation
.
1.6
Significance of the Study
Nigeria is the most populous country in Africa with a population of 146.3 million (Ibidapo-Obe, 2009) and its stock exchange (Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE)) is the third largest in the continent with market capitalization of US $82 billion at end of 2007(Kumo, 2008). Thus far, there is little known about the role of accounting information in terms of its ability to explain changes to the security prices of listed companies on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. Almost all evidence in this area is obtained from the US or Western European countries which have sophisticated markets compared to most developing countries. 

Okonjo-Iweala and Osafo-Kwaako (2007), declare that Nigerian economic growth rates averaged about 7.1 percent annually for the period 2003 to 2006. This is a notable improvement on the performance over the decade when annual rates averaged 2.3 percent. It is important to state that this can further improve since the country has the potential to lead the region as a result of its economic growth.  Investors from all over the world may eagerly aspire to do business in Nigeria if her accounting information meets the needs of both small and institutional investors. This is because the development of accounting infrastructure of any country is a necessary requirement for sustainable economic growth (Emenyonu, 2007). In addition, the financial history and forecast of a company expressed in figures extracted from standard accounting statement are the beginning and the end of every professional investment analysis and investment (Parker, 1967). The significance can thus be summarized as follows: 

1) The findings generated in this study may be used to test the existing theories under extreme conditions not present in developed economies where most of the prior studies were carried out;
2) The investors are supplied with information to help them make good investment decisions;
3) The findings and conclusion may enable the national standards setters to know the nature of demand placed on accounting information by their local investment community, stakeholders and public before they rush into adapting a unified set of accounting standard;

4) The work is important to the Nigerian Accounting Standards Board as it acts as a feedback channel to the board on which accounting number is most widely used for equity valuation in Nigeria and
5) This study fills the gap in literature by investigating the value relevance of accounting data in the Nigerian stock market. The results provide useful evidence to other emerging stock markets. 
This research provides a guide as to which accounting data is or is not valued by investors, which should help the preparers of accounting information and standards setters to further enhance value relevance of the most widely used accounting number. As a result, in preparing accounting for investment decision, they should reduce information overload by publishing a Simplified Investor Summary Accounts (SISA) besides the mandatory financial statements.
1.7
 Scope of Study
 This study provides insight into value relevance of accounting information in the Nigerian stock market and it covers a period of 7 years from 2002 to 2008. 

The choice of this period is necessitated by rapid growth in the Nigerian stock market from 2002 to 2007 and the abrupt collapse in 2008. In 2007, the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE) hit an all time high market capitalization of US $82 billion at end of 2007(Kumo, 2008). The amount is double the foreign reserve of Nigeria at the time. In addition, during those years, the Nigerian Stock Market recorded a significant rise in activity and share prices rose considerably only to collapse in the second half of 2008. Before this collapse, investors were all enjoying the boom in the Nigerian stock market, making tremendous returns as stock prices soared to unprecedented levels. The study therefore focuses on the period before and immediately after this collapse.
In addition, there are two schools of capital market research in accounting-information and measurement perspectives. This study covers measurement perspective by focusing on long term association between accounting information and market values of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange while the information perspective is investigated using primary data. Stock market refers to entire market of equity for trading in the shares and derivatives of the various companies, but this study is just on the equity for trading in shares of the listed companies.  

In order to determine the aggregate Nigerian stock market reaction (measurement perspective) to accounting numbers –earnings, dividends and net book value, the population is all the companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange between 2002 and 2008. The sample consists of 68 companies out of the total companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange each year between 2002 and 2008.
The companies are selected based on the following criteria:

1. The company had been listed  on the Nigerian Stock Exchange during the period and
2. The firm has the necessary financial statement data.
Furthermore, the perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of accounting information is considered.   Investment analysts working with stock brokerage firms represent the institutional investors, while the opinion of others represents individual investors. The investment analysts are chosen because accounting information is one of the most significant sources of financial information for analysts and valuing the companies is one of the most important applications to which they address themselves (Rees, 1995). Besides, investment analysts are the primary users of financial accounting reports and if accounting information is value relevant to them, then, it would be considered as value relevant to other individual investors (Mangena, 2004). 
1.8
Summary of Research Methodology 
The study used both secondary and primary data to examine value relevant of accounting information. The analysis of secondary data was carried out using Fixed Effects, Random Effects and Ordinary Least Squared.  This was followed by the analysis of primary data –administered questionnaires – using Independent T-test. In order to aid ease of understanding, the data is presented using tables and showing frequency distributions, means and standard deviations. Stata SE10 was used to analyse secondary data while SPSS 15.0 was used for primary data analysis.
1.9
Sources of Data
In this study, both primary and secondary data were employed. The primary data were collected through survey questionnaires administered on the respondents. 

The secondary data - earnings-per -share, dividends and book value were obtained from the Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, Annual Financial Reports of companies quoted on Nigerian Stock Exchange and the Nigerian Stock Market Annual. The data of share prices were collected from the Nigerian Stock Exchange database. 
1.10
Outline of Chapters

This study is divided into five chapters in line with Departmental requirements. Chapter one presents the background to study, the research problems, the objectives and research questions. The research hypotheses, the significance of study and scope of study are identified.

Chapter two covers literature review of previous and current research in the area of value relevance of accounting information. It starts with classical view on the subject. More exactly, conceptual, theoretical and empirical frameworks are explained.

Chapter three presents research methods. These include research design, study population, sample size, sampling technique, data gathering method, sources of data, instruments for data collection, description of questionnaire, validity and reliability of instruments, method of data analysis, instrument for data analysis, analytical framework, model specification and model estimation technique.

Chapter four is for data analysis, presentation and interpretation. The hypotheses were tested and the results presented.

Chapter five summarizes the theoretical and empirical findings of the study. It also includes conclusions, recommendations, limitations of study, policy implications and suggestions for further study.       
CHAPTER TWO


LITERATURE REVIEW AND THEORETICAL FRAMEWORK
2.1
Introduction
Research on stock market and accounting information from late 1960s developed without much emphasis on the precise structure of the relation between accounting data and firm value (Benston, 1967; Ball and Brown, 1968: 159-178; Beaver, 1973:49 – 56; Anderson, 1975; Easton and Zmijewski, 1989:117 – 141 and Easton and Harris, 1991:19 -36). However, in the  mid 1990s, researchers started to examine the role of book value of equity, using a valuation framework by Ohlson and Ohlson and Feltham, which expresses share prices under certain conditions as a function of both earnings and book value of equity (Ohlson, 1995; Feltham and Ohlson, 1995; Bernard, 1995; Collins, Maydew and Weiss, 1997; Penman, 1998;  Francis and Schipper ,1999; Brief and Zarowin, 1999; Callao, Cuellar and Jarne, 2006; Beisland, 2009; Chang, Chen, Su and Chang, 2008 and Negah, 2008).
In order to unravel the extent to which the accounting information in Nigerian stock market agrees or digresses from the above situations, this section deals with the conceptual framework, theoretical framework of the research and review of empirical literature. 

2.2
Conceptual Framework

In order to facilitate better understanding of the study, the conceptual framework is set out below. Conceptual framework is used in this research to outline possible courses of action or the preferred approach in this research.
2.2.1
The Information Perspective

Informational perspective measures the usefulness of accounting to individual users without much emphasis on the precise structure of the relation between accounting data and firm value (Bernard, 1995).  Most of the studies on information perspective assume that information content or usefulness can be determined by observing stock market reactions to specific accounting information items (Ball and Brown, 1968, Benston, 1967 and Anderson, 1975). These studies further assert that the degree of usefulness can be measured by the extent of volume or price change following release of the information.

Until the last few years, the information perspective has dominated financial accounting theory and practice. The information perspective relies on a single-person decision theory, where it is the responsibility of an investor to predict future firm performance and make investment decisions. It also depends on efficient securities market theory, where the market can interpret information from any source (Beaver, 1973). In this theory, it is Accountant’s role to supply useful financial statement information to assist investors. Ball and Brown (1968) study is the first to document statistically a share price response to reported net income and their methodology is still employed today. The emphasis of information perspective is on contemporary associations between accounting earnings (or book value) and market returns or prices. In particular, it investigates capital market reactions to public disclosures such as earnings announcements, other firm-specific news and economy-wide macroeconomic news. This is synonymous with information content school.  
Christensen and Demski (2003) suggest two views of accounting objectives -the “value school” based on wealth measurement and the “information content school” based on measuring and disclosing informative events. They make a case for the latter as the most logical objective of accounting. If one accepts the information-content approach to accounting, quite different concepts may arise. For instance, the FASB and IASB prefer the balance sheet approach to the revenue and expense approach, but this is only logical if wealth measurement is an appropriate objective. However, under the information content approach, the revenue or expense approach, essentially focusing on the flows, which more directly reflect the events affecting an entity, may more logically follow. The revenue or expense approach seems to better align with the disclosure of information events and states (Antle, Gjesdal and Liang, 2007).  

Ijiri (1975) and Christensen and Demski (2003) emphasize the stewardship and information content roles of accounting. They recognize the hidden, that is, out-of-equilibrium role of accounting in ensuring managerial actions and reports are held in check. Ijiri (1975) studies the obvious composition of historical cost accounting and compares historical cost accounting to other valuation methods along with three dimensions: accountability, performance measurement, and economic decisions in general.
They define informativeness of accounting number broadly with respect to price formation in capital markets as: 

i)
The relation between key accounting numbers, such as earnings, and securities prices;
ii)
The relation between manager's voluntary disclosure choices and capital markets; 

iii)
How taxation affects the relation between accounting numbers and capital markets; 

iv)
Changes over time in the relation between numbers reported in the financial statements and securities prices;
v)
The extent to which behavioral theories can explain aspects of the relation between accounting numbers and capital market and 

vi)
Whether auditing practices affect the relation between security prices and accounting numbers.
2.2.2
The Measurement Perspective  
Early studies focus mainly on usefulness of accounting information which can be measured by the degree of volume or price change following release of the information (Ball and Brown, 1968, Benston, 1967 and Anderson, 1975). However, attention has turned in recent years to valuation models that include the book value of the equity. Many of these studies refer to the residual income model as their theoretical foundation but now there is increased emphasis on shareholder value. Therefore, residual income measures are more frequently used in the business community to assess financial performance.
Value relevance studies are designed to assess how well accounting information is used by investors in valuing a firm’s equity (Barth, Beaver and Landsman, 2000). They further claim that “usefulness” is not a well defined concept in accounting research, and as a result, value relevance studies do not and are not designed to evaluate the usefulness of accounting numbers. 

Measurement perspective is rooted on the theoretical framework of equity valuation models (Ohlson, 1995 and Beisland, 2009). Value relevance is defined as “the degree of association between accounting information and market value” (Chang et al, 2008:1). Ohlson (1995) depicts in his work that the value of a firm can be expressed as a linear function of book value, earnings and other value relevant information. Amir, Harrris and Veuti, (1993) are the first to use the term “value relevance” in the context of information content of accounting figures. An accounting figure is value relevant if it is significantly associated with the stock prices and stock market indicators such, price-earnings or price to book ratios. 

Barth, Beaver and Landsman (2001) state that value relevance research examines whether accounting numbers explain cross-sectional variations in stock prices. According to Negah (2008), studies on the value relevance of accrual accounting numbers in emerging markets are very few and they are duplicated work carried out in mature markets. Bao and Chow (1999) observe that the value relevance of accounting numbers in mature and emerging markets is different. Their finding indicates that in the mature markets, value relevance decreases over time while in emerging markets, it improves. Bao and Chow’s (1999) finding can be taken a step further and linked to financial globalization and disclosure literature.
Negah (2008) used panel data to examine gains accruing from corporate information liberalization through the adoption of international accounting standards. He discovers that accrual accounting numbers at aggregate level did not show break point around the time of critical corporate information liberalization years. Hung (2000) states that the use of accrual accounting with cash accounting negatively affects the value relevance of financial statements in developing countries with not very strong shareholder protection. This negative effect, however, does not exist in countries with well-built in shareholder protection. Antle, Gjesdal and Liang (2007) claim that most attention is being shifted to the concepts, seemingly accepting the objective of wealth measurement.  They also suggest reassessment of wealth measurement as accounting objective. This is because much research is done on the relevance of value relevance research in financial accounting standard setting. 
Barth, Beaver and Landsman (2000) conclude in their study that the value relevance literature provides useful insights for standard setting process. However, Holthousen and Watts (2001) find that value relevance research offers little or no information for standard setting. As stated before, much of the studies are done on investigating the comparative value relevance of various accounting figures reported in the financial statements. Brief and Zarowin (1999) in their study on value relevance of dividends, book value and earnings, assert that the variables, book value and dividends, have almost the same explanatory power as book value and reported earnings. Liu, Nissim and Thomas (2007) find that multiples based on reported earnings outperform multiples based on a variety of reported operating cash flow measures. They claim EPS forecasts represented substantially better summary measures of value than did operating cash flows forecasts in all five countries they examined. They affirm that relative dominance was observed in most industries. 
Value relevance can be measured in short term event studies (Ball and Brown, 1968). It can also be investigated in long term association studies (Beisland, 2009). This study focuses on long term association between accounting information and firms’ market values. All secondary data analysis was conducted using yearly observations.
2.2.3
 Value Relevance Defined
Value relevance has been defined in many ways in the accounting literature (Barth, Beaver and Landsman, 1998; Ohlson, 1989; Barth, Beaver and Landsman, 2000; Francis and Schipper, 1999; Beisland, 2009 and Beisland, Hamberg and Novak, 2010). Value relevance is defined in the existing literature as the association between accounting numbers and security market values. As stated before, the first study of which we are aware that uses the term “value relevance” to describe this association is Amir, Harris, and Venuti (1993). Barth, Beaver and Landsman, (1998), Ohlson (1999), and Barth et al (2000) give other definitions that are closely related to the one above. 
Value relevance is defined as the ability of financial statement information to capture and summarise firm value (Beisland, 2009). Value relevance is measured as the statistical association between financial statement information and stock market values or returns. The key commonality in the definitions is that an accounting amount is deemed value relevant if it has a significant association with security market value. Earnings and book value are commonly used as the basis for firm valuation. However, the reliability of earnings may be affected by the earnings management, it may affect the relevance of earnings in determining firm value. Information perspective on the other hand, defines value relevance as the usefulness of financial statement information in equity valuation.
In a more detailed discussion of the construct, Francis and Schipper (1999) offer four interpretations of value relevance. First interpretation is that financial statement information affects stock prices by capturing intrinsic share values toward which stock prices drift. Under second interpretation, Francis and Schipper (1999) state that financial information is value relevant if it contains the variables used in a valuation model or assists in predicting those variables, while third and fourth interpretations are based on value relevance as indicated by a statistical association between financial information and prices or returns. Following Francis and Schipper’s (1999) fourth interpretation, the researcher defines value relevance of accounting information as the ability of accounting numbers to summarize information that affects the firm’s value which can be measured by the aggregate market reaction to accounting information.
According to Nilson (2003), value relevance of accounting information deals with the usefulness of financial statement in equity valuation. It investigates the association between a security price and a set of accounting variables (Beaver, 2002). Scott (2003) claims that accounting information is value relevant if it leads investors to change their beliefs and actions and in order to be relevant, accounting data must among others, be quick to respond to users’ (particularly the investors) needs. Accounting exists because it satisfies the users’ need- primarily a need for information- and if this need if not met, those who have money to invest and lend would take it to where this need is met (Germon and Meek, 2001). In essence, the investors in particular, should be supplied with information to help them make good investment decision. 

Some researchers regard ability of accounting information to summarize business transactions and other events (the measurement view of value relevance) as sufficient proof of value relevance of accounting data. Others place greater emphasis on earnings prediction (the prediction view of value relevance) or information content of accounting data (the information view of value relevance), among others. Value relevance of accounting information is the ability of any information contained in the financial statements to enable the financial statement users determines the value and performance of the company. 
Value relevance studies usually have two goals (Klimczak, 2009). The first is to test whether accounting earnings are relevant for equity valuation in the local stock market. The second aim is to compare the results of the test with results obtained by previous researchers of rich countries and draw conclusions about the state of the local economy. Klimczak (2009) states that in both cases value relevance is treated as proof of the quality and usefulness of accounting numbers.
2.3
Theoretical Framework

In the 1960s, the emphasis of capital market research in accounting (of which value relevance of accounting information is a branch) was on usefulness of accounting to individual users- which is also synonymous with information perspective. This perspective was pioneered by Ball and Brow in1968.  Ball and Brown (1968) who are the first to attempt a value relevance test do not make any reference to theory (Klimczak, 2009).  Despite the difficulties of designing experiments to test the implications usefulness, they established that security market prices do respond to accounting information (Scott, 2003).   However, their study was based on capital market theories prevalent at the time. Ball and Brown assume that the Efficient Market Hypothesis is maintained.  Studies which followed continued to use diverse econometric methods, but there was still no comprehensive theory behind the tests.

However, in mid 1990 the emphasis was shifted from information perspective to measurement perspective - that is, stock market reaction to the aggregate stock market (Bernard, 1995; Feltham and Ohlson, 1995; Bao and Chow, 1999 and Beisland, 2009. The Ohlson clean surplus theory also refers to as Residual Income Valuation Model (RIVM) provides a framework consistent with this measurement perspective known as balance sheet approach (Ohlson, 1995). The theory shows that the market value of the firm can be expressed in terms of fundamental balance sheet and profit and loss components (Scot, 2003).  This study adopts a simplified version of Ohlson’s clean surplus theory following Beisland (2009).  This section discusses the theory, prior studies that have used the Ohlson’s clean surplus theory and the relevance of RIVM to this present study. 
2.3.1
Residual Income   Valuation Model

Ohlson (1995), who bases his theory of valuation on the residual income valuation model (RIVM), claims that under certain conditions share price can be expressed as a weighted average of book value and earnings. Ohlson’s clean surplus theory shows that the market value of the firm can be expressed in terms of income statement and balance sheet items (Scot, 2003).  Residual Income Valuation Model defines total common equity value in terms of the book value of stockholders’ equity and net income determined in accordance with GAAP (Halsey, 2001).

The model has generated much empirical research examining the comparative valuation relevance of the balance sheet and the income statement components.  Residual Income Valuation Model has become prominent in the accounting literature (Spilioti and Karathanassis, 2010). This is because it has had some success in explaining and predicting actual market firm value (Scott, 2003). Prior empirical studies that find book value and discounted future abnormal earnings have vital role to play in the determination of equity prices include Bernard, (1995); Burgstahler and Dichev, (1997); Penman and Sougiannis, (1998); Dechow, Hutton and Sloan, (1999).

Bernard (1995) is one of the first to gauge the value relevance of accounting data. He compares the explanatory power of a model in which share price is explained by book value and earnings versus a model of share price based on dividends alone. He finds that the accounting variables dominate dividends, which is interpreted as confirming the benefits of the linkage between accounting data and firm value.
Burgstahler and Dichev (1997) develop and test an option style valuation model and find that the relevance of earnings versus book value varies by return-on-equity.  Dechow,  Hutton and Sloan (1999) evaluate the empirical implications of Ohlson’s model. These studies claim that the Ohlson’s model breaks new ground on two fronts namely:
1.
The model provides a more complete valuation approach and
2.
The model explains stock prices better than the models based on than the discounted cash flow model. 


 Ohlson’s model has important implication for this study as it specifies the relation between equity values and accounting variables such as earnings, dividends and book value. This is unlike the other models that make no appeal to book value or residual income. Ohlson (1995) suggests that, as long as forecasts of earnings, book values and dividends follow clean surplus accounting (
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where, dt  denotes the dividend per share at time t;
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Finally, Ohlson assumes linear information dynamics, that is, abnormal earnings can be estimated with linear regression analysis. Then, the abnormal earnings for period t+1 are defined as:
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where the non-accounting information for period t+1 is defined as:
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If these assumptions hold the price of a security is defined as:
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Spilioti and Karathanassis (2010) claim that RIVM has three advantages. Firstly, special emphasis is given to book value, thus avoiding any economic hypotheses about future cash flows. Secondly, the treatment of investments is such that they are treated as a balance sheet factor and not one that reduces cash flows (Penman and Sougiannis, 1998). Thirdly, as Bernard (1995) has shown, for shorter horizons the Ohlson formulation is more suitable than the dividends valuation model, as the latter underestimates share value.   Other related capital market theories that assist in explaining relevance of information are herein reviewed.   
2.3.2
Present Value Model
 
The present value model is very crucial in relevance of information to financial statement users. The model is extensively used in finance and economics and has had significant impact on accounting over the years (Scott, 2003).  For the purpose of this model, relevant information is defined as information about the company’s future economic prospects- its dividends, cash flows and profitability. The present value model is discussed under two conditions.

a. Present Value under Certainty and

b. Present Value under Uncertainty.

a. Present Value under Certainty
Present value under certainty connotes an ideal condition where future cash flows of the firm and the interest rate in the economy are publicly known with certainty.  The present-value relation says that, under certainty, the value of a capital good or financial asset equals the summed discounted value of the stream of revenues which that asset generates(LeRoy, 2005). According to Scott, (2003), the following additional assumptions are presumed of present value under certainty:

1. Relevant financial statements about the firm’s steam of future dividends are given to investors. The emphasis is on dividend irrelevancy because the investors can invest any dividends they receive at the same rate of return as the firm earns on cash flows not paid in dividends;

2.    Company’s net income plays no role in firm’s valuation. The Balance sheet items contain all relevant information. In other words, market valuation of assets and liabilities can serve as indirect measures of value of the company. This is because the cash flows are known and can be discounted to provide balance sheet valuations. The implication is that, though the net income is “true and correct”, it conveys no information that helps investors predict future economic prospects of the firm. The investors can easily calculate it for themselves;

3. The financial statements are perfectly reliable. Put differently, the financial statements are precise and free from bias and

4.    The market value of an asset equals the present value of its future cash flows because of the principle of arbitrage. 

b. Present Value under Uncertainty

The main difference between the uncertainty and certainty cases is that expected net income and realized net income need not be the same under uncertainty.  However, financial statements based on expected present values continue to be both relevant and reliable. According to Scott, (2003:22)
Ideal conditions under uncertainty are characterized by a given, fixed interest rate at which the firm’s future cash flows are discounted, a complete and publicly known set of states of nature, state probabilities objective and publicly known and state realization publicly observable. 

The following additional assumptions are presumed of present value under uncertainty:

1. Financial statements are both completely relevant and reliable;

2. Balance sheet fair values can be determined directly through expected present values or market values and

3. Income statement still has no information content when abnormal earnings do not persist.

In practice, present value model faces some severe problems. This is because a theoretically well – defined concept of net income does not exist in real world (Scott, 2003).  In order to tackle this problem, there is a need to study an important concept in accounting – the concept of decision usefulness.  
2.3.3
Decision theories
Accountants have decided that investors are the major of users and as a result have turn to various theories in economics and finance particularly, to theories of decision and investment, to understand the type of accounting information investors need (Scott, 2003:53). The real world is not characterized by ideal conditions. Scott, 2003 states that theoretically it is impossible to prepare financial statement that is both reliable and relevant. This is because present value model that is reliable is less relevant. While historical cost based accounting is reliable but not relevant. Relevant financial statement is defined as ones that showed the discounted present values of the cash flows from the firm’s assets and liabilities (Scott, 2003). The decision usefulness concept first appeared in the American Accounting Association (AAA) monograph in 1966. The decision usefulness approach to accounting theory takes the view that if it is not theoretically possible to prepare correct financial statement, at least, it is essential to make historical cost-based statement more useful (AAA Monograph,1966). This was reinforced by the 1973 Trueblood Commission.  Accountants must now pay much closer attention to financial statements users and their decision needs, since under non – ideal situations it is not possible to read the value of the company directly from the financial statements (Scott, 2003). 
According to Beisland (2009: 8), “an objective of financial reporting is to assist investors in valuing equity. For financial information to be value relevant, it is a condition that accounting numbers should be related to current company value”. He further claims that if there is no association between accounting numbers and company value, accounting information cannot be termed value relevant and, hence, financial reports are unable to fulfill one of their primary objectives.
2.3.4
Capital Market Theories

Capital market theories provide a forum for discussions of contemporary issues in financial reporting and capital markets, including capital market consequences of disclosure quality/policies, earnings management, and external monitoring by outside stakeholders. The theories provide understanding of four distinct but inter-related roles of financial reporting in the capital-market economy: (1) the informational role; (2) the valuation role; (3) the monitoring/corporate governance role; and (4) the regulatory role. 

2.3.5
 Market Efficiency 
Efficient-market hypothesis (EMH) asserts that financial markets are "informationally efficient". There are three major forms of the hypothesis: "weak", "semi-strong", and "strong". Weak EMH claims that prices on traded assets (for example, stocks, bonds, or property) already reflect all past publicly available information. Semi-strong EMH states that prices reflect all publicly available information and that prices instantly change to reflect new public information. Strong EMH additionally claims that prices instantly reflect even hidden or "insider" information. Efficient market theory implies that market will react quickly to new information. Thus, it is important to know when the accounting report first became publicly known. The accounting report is informative only if it provides data not previously known by the market. 
Stock market thrives on information. This is because information plays an essential role in reducing the investors' challenges in the capital market. Information is important to investors in helping them evaluate investment opportunities to decide how to allocate their savings. In addition, it is also important because it enables investors to monitor whether their resources have been used wisely by managers. Markets where information is irregular give opportunities for investors who are more informed to take advantage of those who are less informed, and make it more expensive for investors to buy or sell a security without affecting its price. 

As a result of the important role of information to the market, stock exchanges word-wide, set listing and post-listing requirements for companies seeking quotation. For instance in Nigeria, the post-listing requirements of the NSE lay emphasis on the timely release of information. Quoted companies are required to provide the market with information about their operations to the public. This information includes quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial accounts. However, the investors in Nigeria have suffered untold hardship due to lack of regular and reliable information from the listed companies on NSE (Goddy, 2010).
In Nigeria, Nigerian stock market is efficient in the weak form and follows a random walk process (Olowe, 1999 and Okpara, 2010). The implication is that all information conveyed in past patterns of a stock’s price is reflected in the current price of the stock. Therefore, it is ineffectual to select stocks based on information about recent trends in stock prices. Olowe (1999) uses data of an end of the month quoted stock prices of 59 randomly selected from January 1981 to December 1992 on the Nigeria stock exchange and employs a sample autocorrelation test. The study concluded that the Nigeria stock market appeared to be efficient in the weak form. Kukah, Amoo and Raji (2006) focus their study on market indices in local currencies rather than prices of individual stocks. They use the capitalization weighted index of all listed stocks. They use both parametric and non parametric test in determining the efficiency of the Nigerian stock market, according to them, the results of the parametric tests show that the Nigerian capital market is weak form efficient while the parametric tests showed that the market is not weak - form efficient. Their results are somewhat mixed. 
The role of an efficient market cannot be overemphasized. According to Olawale (2004) it creates an enabling environment for a faster, sustainable and socially equitable economic growth. Elakama (2004) states that an efficient stock market mobilizes and allocates greater proportion to those companies with the highest prospective rates of returns after giving due allowance for risk. The allocating function is critical in determining the overall growth of the economy.  It is also a conduit for channeling long term funds to productive sectors. Efficient stock market promotes the control of the economy by constituting itself into a stabilization agent of the government. It also performs the role of a protector to the investors.
Bris, Goetzman, and Zhu (2003) study consider the link between specific mechanisms and market efficiency in a cross-country basis. They analyze whether short sales restrictions affect the efficiency of the market. They find some empirical evidence that short-sales restrictions inhibit downward price discovery. 
It is pertinent to state that the above discussed theories are to certain the extent they are related to value relevance of accounting information research they are not the subjects of this study. These theories appear contradictory. Therefore, this study is established on Residual Income Valuation Model theory which is more suitable for the value relevance study (Bernard, 1995; Burgstahler and Dichev, 1997; Penman and Sougiannis, 1998; Dechow, Hutton and Sloan, 1999).

2.4
 Review of Empirical Literature
Over four decades ago, value relevant of accounting information became the focus of accounting research.  Ball and Brown (1968) provide evidence of security market reaction to earnings announcements. On the basis of their studies, they claim that accounting information is useful to investors in estimating the expected values and risks of security returns. Their result shows that earnings are value relevant.
In 1967, Benson worked on published corporate accounting data and stock prices and claimed that published accounting reports were used by investors to evaluate their expectations of the corporations. He also avers that changes in investors’ expectation caused by published accounting data should be reflected in a price of stock of the company. This work was criticized by Parker (1967) because the cause – effect relationship was difficult to isolate.  
Pankoff and Virgil (1970) presented an inventive and ambitious laboratory experiment in order to measure the usefulness of accounting and other information to professional security analysts who participate as subjects in the laboratory stock market. Usefulness of information is defined as “ the extent to which information facilitates decision-making”. Based on this definition they propose five ways to appraise usefulness of information item. They are subject’s demand for the item; the degree to which the item affects the subject’s forecasts; the extent to which the item leads to good forecasts; the degree to which the item affects the subject’s decisions and the extent to which the item leads to good decisions. 
Bowen (1981) studied the different multiples placed on the components of earnings of U.S. electric utility firms. He particularly compared the multiplier of allowance for funds used during construction, a non-operating item, and the multiplier of operating income. The dependent variable is stock price while the independent variables are the various earnings components. The dependent and independent variable are regularized by beginning book value. Results indicate that the cross-sectional valuation model is better by disaggregating earnings into their components, and the operating income component is more valuable per higher earnings multiplier than the non-operating income component. 

Several others have also worked on value relevance of operating income and non-operating income (Lipe, 1986; Fairfield, Sweeney and Yohn, 1996 and Bao and Bao, 2004). Lipe (1986) examined the value relevance of earnings components which was either defined by accounting classification or by the permanent-transitory dichotomy. His results show that components of earnings have information content. Easton and Harris (1991) investigated whether the level of earnings divided by price at the beginning of the stock period is relevant for relationship between earnings and returns. The study shows a relationship between the level of current accounting earnings divided by beginning-of-period price and stock returns.   The traditional research therefore, was contrasted with the approach supported by Ohlson(1995), Feltham and Ohlson (1995) and Bernard (1995). Since then, the value relevance of accounting information has been the most explored areas of financial accounting research in the developed world, especially in the United States of America and United Kingdom, with a number of claims that accounting numbers are value relevant.

Bao and Bao (2004) investigated value relevance of operating income versus non-operating income in the Taiwan stock exchange. They performed three types of value relevance analysis- return on equity analysis, price levels analysis and price changes analysis in this study, claiming that value can be defined by return on equity, stock price level, or stock price change. The results of their study show that valuation models based on earnings components have a higher explanatory power than those based on earnings alone. The contribution of both operating income and non-operating income are not significantly dissimilar.  Investors are counseled to consider operating income as well as non-operating income when analyzing firm value in Taiwan Stock Exchange.      
However, in recent times, stock markets research in accounting has witnessed increasing attacks on the value relevance of accounting information. A number of literature in the developed countries have created a widespread notion that accounting numbers have lost their value relevance (Ramesh and Thiagarajan, 1995; Dontoh, Radhakrishnan and Ronen, 2001). These criticisms are based on theory of life cycle stages, high-technology, fraud, rapidly changing business environment, increasing conservatism and frequent use of coefficient of determination  in accounting research as a measure of value relevance without controlling for differences in the coefficient of variation of scale factor (Brown, Lo and Lys, 1999) among others. This belief also developed in response to claims of traditional financial statements losing relevance because of the move from an industrialized economy to a high-tech, service oriented economy (Collins, Maydew and Weiss, 1997).  These findings are supported by past studies that investigate the association between accounting numbers and stock prices and showed that, in most cases, the association between counting data and stock prices has been declining over time (Francis and Schipper, 1999; Brown, Kin and Lys, 1999; Lev and Zarowin, 1999).  
Brown, Lo and Lys (1998) examined the properties of the R-squared metric frequently used in accounting research as a measure of value relevance. Their analytical results show that the metric is unreliable in the presence of scale effects. They showed that the metric is upwardly biased for accounting studies, and the bias is increasing in the scale factor's coefficient of variation. They concluded that it is invalid to make cross-sample comparisons of R-squared, whether the samples are drawn cross-sectional or over time, unless the researcher controls for differences in the coefficient of variation across the samples. These results show that the finding of increasing value relevance in Collins, Maydew, and Weiss (1997) and Francis and Schipper (1999) are attributable to over time increases in the coefficient of variation of scale. After controlling for these effects, they found that there has been a decline in value relevance as measured by R-squared. 

 Though, such views have met with stiff opposition with studies such as Collins, Maydew and Weiss, (1997) and Balachandran and Mohanram (2006) asserting that it is premature to claim that accounting information has lost its value relevance. Balachandran and Mohanram (2006) in a recent study of association between conservatism and the value relevance of accounting information concluded that there is no evidence that industries with increasing conservatism see a greater decline in value relevance than industries with deceasing conservatism. Furthermore, Callao, Cuellar and Jarne (2006) performed a comparative analysis of the value relevance of reported earnings and their components. Their study provides evidence for the value relevance of net earnings figure. Gjerde, Knivsfla and Saettem (2007) found that the time trend of overall value-relevance has not declined after controlling for changes in underlying economic variables.

Frost and Powall (1994) compared the stock market reaction to the annual and quarterly earnings in the U.S. and U.K. They reported greater market reactions to earnings in the U.S. and attribute this to high liquidity and more frequent information disclosure in U.S. market. They also reported that the market reaction to earnings announcements by the same multinational corporation is different between the U.K. and the U. S. Their results suggest that the investors in different countries react to the same earnings announcement in different ways. 
Harris, Lang and Moller (1994) compared the relevance of accounting measures for U.S. and German firms and observe evidence of little change in value relevance before and after the Accounting Directive Law.  The result of the relations between price and both earnings and shareholders’ equity since the U.S. and German systems also result in differences in the measurement of assets and liabilities. Salmi,  Yli-Olli, Virtanen and Kallunki (1997) also used a canonical correlation approach with U.S. data to investigate the nature of the association between the firm's accounting and market-based variables and observed a clear relationship between the firm's accounting and stock-market variables.   

The importance of financial accounting information in stock market growth can best be appreciated by examining how well accounting information numbers such as earnings explain or impact on stock prices and returns. Research indicates that earnings is a factor that is “priced” in the securities market (Blume and Husic, 1973). The share price impact appears to subsume both the earnings yield and size effects upon abnormal security returns. The research also indicates that share price has a strong cross-sectional association with security returns.  Covill (1998) investigated relationship between changes in earnings per share and the performance of the market. He employed linear correlation coefficient and inferred that changes in average earnings per share over five years might be a good predictor of average changes in stock prices over the next five years. Salmi, et al (1997) claim there is a clear relationship between the firm's accounting and stock-market variables. 
Ariff, Loh and Chew (1997) also reported relationship between earnings and share prices. Their results show that unexpected earnings changes are significantly associated with share price changes. They further state that the main reason for which accounting information is generated is to facilitate decision making.  However, for financial reporting to be effective, among other requirements, it should be relevant, complete and reliable. These qualitative characteristics require that the information must not be unfair nor has predisposition of favouring one party over the others. Accounting information should give a decision maker the capacity to predict future actions. It should also increase the knowledge of the users to identify similarities and differences in two type of information.

Therefore, reliable accounting information can be described as an essential pre-requisite for stock market growth. Based on the “engine of economic growth” potential of the stock market,   developed nations do not toy with their Stock Markets and relevance of financial reporting. The reason US capital markets are very successful is simply because people are willing to invest more capital there since they receive higher quality financial information than is available in any other place in the world (Tuner, 2001).  Germon and Meek (2001) state that those who have funds to invest or lend may decide where to place their resources based on the financial accounting information reports. They state further that importance of stock markets as a source of external finance is growing around the world and stock market development has become a top priority of many countries.
Filer, Hanousek and Campos (1999) declare that Stock Market growth is measured by three variables: (1) market capitalization over GDP, (2) turnover velocity-ratio of turnover to market capitalization, (3) the change in the number of domestic shares listed as an indication of financial deepening. Market capitalization as a percentage of GDP is a good proxy and less subjective than other individual measures of stock market development (Yartey, 2008).  
Researchers have used market capitalization as a percentage of GDP to measure stock market development and found that most stock market indicators are highly correlated with banking sector development (Yartey, 2008, Demirguc-Kunt and Levine, 1996). They claim that countries with well-developed stock markets have a tendency to have well-developed banking sector. The study finds that macroeconomic factors such as income level, gross domestic investment, banking sector development, private capital flows, and stock market liquidity are important determinants of stock market development in emerging market countries. The results also show that political risk, law and order, and bureaucratic quality are important determinants of stock market development because they enhance the viability of external finance. This result suggests that the resolution of political risk can be an important factor in the development of emerging stock markets. The analysis also shows the factors identified above as determining stock market development in emerging economies can also explain the development of the stock market in South Africa (Yartey, 2008)
The relevance of accounting information has been one of the most explored areas of capital market research in accounting especially in the developed world during the last decades. This is caused by the necessity to provide empirical evidence of the relevance of accounting information. Ariff , Loh and Chew (1997) examined the relationship between earnings and share prices. Their results show that unexpected earnings changes are significantly associated with share price changes. Though, they claimed that the strength of the earnings effect is not as evident as those reported in the more analytically-intensive developed stock markets.  
Song, Douthett and Jung (2003) also studied how the liberalization of Korean stock market affected stock price behavior and altered the role of accounting information in investment decisions. They examined whether the relevance of accounting information –earnings and book value – changed after market liberalization. It was tested by comparing the coefficients of accounting variable before and after liberalization. Their results indicate that the explanatory power of accounting numbers increased after market liberalization. These studies like others focused exclusively on earnings and book value to explain share price behavior and used R – squares as a measure of relevance of accounting information.  

Graham, King, and Bailes (1998) examined the value relevance of financial accounting in Thailand prior to and during the decline in the value of the Baht in July 1997. The study examines the association between security prices from the Stock Exchange of Thailand and accounting book values and earnings from first quarter 1992 through third quarter 1997. Their results show that Thai earnings and book values are positively and significantly related to security prices although to a lesser extent than for United States and British firms. They claimed Thailand book values and earnings each have incremental information content relative to the other. They further assert that the value relevance of book values in Thailand are increasing significantly over time, particularly after the decline in the value of the Baht in July 1997. However, the number of Thai firms reporting losses increased in the second and third quarters of 1997. Thus, their evidence that the value-relevance of Thai book values increased is consistent with evidence from US firms that value relevance shifts from earnings to book values when earnings are negative. They found no evidence, however, of change in the value relevance of earnings. 
Alali and Foote (2008) examined earnings-returns association in the Abu Dhabi Securities Market from 2000-2006. They found that there was an overall significant positive association between earnings level and returns in Abu Dhabi Securities Market. In their work, the positive significant relationship was more obvious in 2000, 2001, 2003 and 2006.  Adela, Anuţa and  Silvia (2010) findings confirm that the revaluated amounts of tangible assets are value relevant—and verify the predictive and feedback value, timeliness, reliability, and the possibilities for fair value implementation, characteristics which have been selected for testing. However, their own results are less consistent than the outcome of the variable which reflects the equity growth due to profit, which leads to a moderate value relevance of fair value in the case of revaluated tangible assets.
Vishnani and Shah (2008) determined the value relevance of financial reporting in India and describe value relevance as the ability of the financial information contained in the financial statements to explain the stock market measures. Their study explained the likely impact of financial reporting by listed companies on the market prices of their shares. The result of this study reveals that value relevance of published financial statements is insignificant. However, ratios based on these financial statements show significant association with stock market indicators. Further, through this study, they also explored the value relevance value additivity of cash flow. They concluded that despite the widespread use and continuing advancement in accounting information and reporting practices, there is some concern about their not carrying enough value in the eyes of the shareholders or investors. 
Klimczak ( 2009) adopted value relevance methodology to test for the association between accounting earnings reported by listed companies, and the value of their equity. The researcher   claimed that a positive result of the test serves as proof of the quality of accounting standards, accounting practice and the local stock market.

Nearly all evidence in the area of value relevance of accounting information is obtained from the developed stock markets and these include Ball and Brown (1968), Pankoff and Virgil (1970) and Francis and Schipper (1999). However, Nigerian stock market is an emerging with market capitalization of US $82 billion at end of 2007(Kumo, 2008). The Nigerian stock market is an emerging capital market due to the rate and prospects of its growth. Osaze (1984) as cited in Abdullahi, (2005) claims “Nigerian stock market is still poorly developed though emerging”.  
Over the past few decades, the world stock markets have surged, and emerging markets have accounted for a large amount of this boom (Yartey, 2008). The speed and extent of stock market development in developing countries have been unprecedented and have led to fundamental shift both in the financial structures of less developed countries and in the capital flows from developed nations. A key indicator of stock market development, the capitalization ratio (market capitalization as a proportion of GDP) rose at an unprecedented rate in leading developing economies during the 1980s and the 1990s climbing from 10 to over 84 percent of GDP in countries such as Chile in the course of two decades decade (Yartey, 2008).
Today, emerging markets are now a very important key determinant of global growth (Johnson, 2008). He further asserts that emerging markets have emerged as a major determinant of global prosperity. Emerging markets are the countries that are just starting to interest a broader class of investors worldwide. They are countries with developing financial markets that are perceived as having strong but unrealized prospects. The International Finance Corporation in 1980 coins emerging market to refer to developing countries with stock markets that were beginning to demonstrate the features of mature stock markets in the industrial countries.
 Nellor (2008) defines emerging markets as “countries in sub-Saharan Africa that have financial markets and attract investor’s interest”. He avers that emerging markets are attractive to investors because they offer rates of return that are high relative to developed markets and proffer for investors to diversify risk. Ologunde, Elumilade and Asaolu (2006) examined the relationships between the Nigerian stock market capitalization rate and interest rate using regression analysis. The results show that the prevailing interest rate exerts positive influence on stock market capitalization rate. 

Nigerian economy in recent times has been growing, but is still very far behind in terms of development. The slow pace is evident in the rising level of unemployment, poverty and low standard of living. However a major panacea that can take Nigeria out of this predicament is promotion of a vibrant capital market. A virile capital market influences economic development because of interrelationship between macro-economic stability and the soundness of financial system. The stability of a nation’s economy is measured by the condition of its capital market because:

i. It shows the state of health of the national economy.  

ii. It provides a measure of the buoyancy of the national economy by the extent to which economic activities rely on it

 The most important aspect of capital market is in its provision of long-term debt in form of bonds issued by the government and corporations and as well as equities. Those who raise funds through equities do not have to lose sleep about maturity date particularly when the instruments are in perpetuities, and the repayment of funds through bonds is over a long period. Intermediation between the needs of firms and investors signifies the core function of capital markets, which by extension, enables the functioning of capital markets to facilitate:

i. Obtaining of information  about the companies;

ii. Corporate regulation;

iii. Investment risk diversification.

The level of national economic development and the extent to which most economic activities can efficiently rely on the stability of the capital market are major indications of a healthy balance between a sound financial system and macro-economic stability (Okeke,2004). There are practical findings supporting the view that well functioning capital markets are crucial to sustainable economic growth.

Atje and Jovanovic (1993) as cited in Babatunde and Mokuolu (2005) found significant correlations between economic growth and the value of stock market trading divided by GDP for 40 countries over the period 1980-1988. Levine and Zervos(1999) as cited in Babatunde and Mokuolu (2005)  also found that stock market development is positively correlated with long run economic growth by using a sample of 41 counties over a period 1976-1993. The capital market is the most credible source of medium and long term financing and a base for sustainable development.
In Nigeria, the equity market is the largest; it has grown significantly in the recent times because of privatization, new issues of listed companies and price appreciation between 2001 and 2007. In 2007, out of the 319 securities  listed on NSE, 226 are equities (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2008).   Unlike the equity market, the patronage of the debt market has been quite low, principally because of uncomplimentary policy environment and a preference of fund users for other forms of financing among other reasons (Okereke-Onyiuke, 1991). 
Abdullahi (2005) used multifaceted measure of overall market performance to determine association between Nigerian stock market performance and economic growth  (Real GDP Growth Rate). The result indicates that there is a significant correlation between the Nigerian stock market performance and real GDP growth. 
There are a number of research in Nigeria on relation between Nigerian stock market and economic growth (Abdullahi, 2005; Babatunde and Mokuolu, 2005 and Ologunde, et al, 2006), however, at the time of this research we are not aware any extensive work on relation between accounting information and stock market growth.
Accounting information about a business entity is required by variety of users ranging from shareholders, investors, government, customers, employees to management and competitors among others (Salawu, 2009). Thus, the information expected to be provided in financial statements are those that are quantitative and qualitative in nature to aid their relevant users in making informed economic decisions. All accounting information that will assist users to assess the financial liquidity, profitability and viability of a reporting entity should be disclosed and presented in a clear logical and understandable manner.
In order to achieve this, the information perspective has been adopted by accounting standard setting bodies (Scott, 2003). This perspective avers that investors want to make their own predictions of future security returns and use up all useful information as perceived as useful.  Value relevance research is important for accounting legislators and standard setters (Barth, Beaver and Landsman, 2001).  
Glover, Ijiri, Levine and Liang (2004) aver that many of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB’s) recent standards and ongoing projects emphasize fair value measurement in an attempt to increase the relevance of financial statements. This appears as part of the FASB’s broader emphasis on decision usefulness. They argue that, these same standards and projects have reduced or have the potential to reduce the reliability of accounting, as is to be expected in the familiar tradeoff between relevance and reliability. Furthermore, lot of hard work is done by stock market regulators and accounting standard setters in improving the quality of financial reporting and increasing the transparency level in financial reporting (Vishnani and Shah, 2008). 
Vishnani and Shah (2008) examined the value relevance of financial reporting with emphases on value additivity of cash flow reporting which was introduced in  Indian markets. Their study reveals that value relevance of published financial statements, per se, is negligible but ratios based on these financial statements show significant association with stock market indicators. They assert that despite the widespread use and continuing advancement in the financial reporting practices, there is some concern about their not carrying enough value in the eyes of the shareholders or investors. The results of our investigation depict negligible value being added by cash flow reporting.

2.5 
Equity Valuation and Negative Earnings
Collins, Pincus and Xie (1997) studied equity valuation and negative earnings and found an explanation for the anomalous significantly negative price-earnings relation using the simple earnings capitalization model for firms that report losses. They discovered that inclusion of book value of equity in the valuation specification eliminates the negative relation. This suggests that the simple earnings capitalization model is miss-specified and the negative coefficient on earnings for loss firms is a manifestation of that misspecification. Furthermore, they provide evidence on three competing explanations for the role that book value of equity plays in valuing loss firms. They investigated whether the importance of book value in cross-sectional valuation models stems from its role as:  a control for scale differences;  a proxy for expected future normal earnings ;  or  a proxy for loss firms' abandonment option. Their results do not support the conjecture that the importance of book value in cross-sectional valuation stems primarily from its role as a control for scale differences. Rather, the results are consistent with book value serving as a value-relevant proxy for expected future normal earnings for loss firms in general, and as a proxy for abandonment option for loss firms most likely to cease operations and liquidate.
2.6
Company Size and Value Relevance of Accounting Information
Prior studies document that firm size could be a factor, which impacts the degree of value-relevance of accounting (Freeman, 1987; Collins, Kothari and Raybum, 1987; Lang and Lundholm, 1996; Collins, Pincus and Xie, 1997 and Ahmed, 2003). Size is an important variable for explaining cross-sectional variations in value relevance of accounting information.  Collins et al (1997) claim that using book values of equity to evaluate firms with small-sizes, intangible-intensities and reporting negative earnings is more appropriate than using earnings. They assert that  in the light of investors' points of view,  small firms are more likely to face financial distress than large firms. Chen, Chen and Su (2001) suggest that earnings are value-relevant for firms with positive earnings, and that value-relevance shifts to book values for firms with negative earnings. Besides, both earnings and book values are value-relevant for large and small firms, while earnings coefficients are larger than book values coefficients for small firms. 
Seize  effects are usually measured by book value of total assets, profitability, liquidity, leverage, total asset, number of shareholders, shareholders funds, listing on world capital markets, negative earnings and the legal rule (regulation and supervision) in the market(Carslaw and Caplan,1991; Abdullah, 1996; Jaggi and Tsui, 1999 and Owusu-Ansah, 2000). The proxies for company size in this study are profitability; turnover; and shareholders’ funds. They are good proxies for company size because they are less arbitrary than other measures (Jaggi and Tsui, 1999; Owusu-Ansah, 2000 and Ahmed, 2003). 
2.7
 Difference in Accounting Information across the Industries

Several studies have investigated whether value relevance is industry specific or not (Biddle and Seow, 1991; Francis and Schipper, 1999; Hamberg and Novak, 2007; Alali and Foote, 2008 and Beisland et al, 2010). Biddle and Seow (1991) demonstrate that response coefficients differ considerably across industries and that these differences are related to industry entry barriers, product type, growth, financial leverage and operating leverage. Hence there are potentially many factors that contribute to cross-sectional differences in value relevance. However, when using broad sectors like non-traditional and traditional industries (or Francis and Schipper’s high-tech and low-tech industries) these differences are expected to be far less evident.  

Alali and Foote (2008) investigated the difference in value relevance of accounting information across the industries in the Abu Dhabi Securities Market (ADSM) from 2000-2006 and discovered there is insignificant association between earnings level and returns in years 2003 and 2004 and in banking and industrial segments. The association between earnings change and returns also varies between years and across industry. They estimated the models for the pooled sample by year and by industry. They found that there is negative association between earnings and returns in 2002 and 2005 in energy and insurance segments.  They concluded that earnings-returns association in the ADSM varies by year and by industry. 
 Adela et al, 2010) investigated the value relevance of revalued tangible assets and its variation depending on industry, size of the firm and age of revalued amounts. They examined the reaction of investors on the Romanian market, a developing market, in the period of economic growth between 2003 and 2007. The study suggests a model which allows for the comparative analysis of the influence over share price attributed to two equity growth sources: revaluation reserves and operational profit. The value relevance analysis on clusters verifies the established hypotheses regarding the superiority of value relevance for the manufacturing sector as opposed to the service sector and of revaluations older than 2 years compared to more recent revaluations.  However, the hypothesis regarding higher value relevance of revaluated amounts disclosed by large firms compared to SMEs is not confirmed, as only the latter presented significant statistical values.
Several prior studies argue that there has been a decline in value relevance over the

last decades (Brown, Lo and Lys, 1999; Lev and Zarowin, 1999). The decline is often attributed to a “new economy”. Companies within knowledge-intensive industries experience rapid changes that make accounting numbers less useful, to investors (Lev and Zarowin, 1999). Also, the increasing amount of intangible assets is put forward as a factor contributing to a deterioration of the association between accounting information and stock prices/stock returns (Aboody and Lev, 1998; Lev and Sougiannis, 1996). It could be argued that companies in these arising industries are more complex and that a greater portion of their intangible assets are not accounted for. If value relevance has declined because of more high-tech companies (or nontraditional, “new economy” companies), this must be due to lower value relevance for such firms than for traditional companies. Still, Francis and Schipper’s (1999) found that in the period 1952-94, there was no significant difference in value relevance between high-tech and low-tech companies.  Their first hypothesis concerns the overall explanatory power of accounting information between traditional and non-traditional industries. They expected no significant difference in value relevance between these two groups on average. While there will be temporary differences they cancel out over an extensive period of time. 
Their second hypothesis concerns changes in the overall explanatory power of accounting information between traditional and non-traditional industries. They expected non-traditional industries to have more time-varying value relevance. They claim the reason for such a higher variance among non-traditional industries could be due to several matters. These industries might be more uncertain than traditional industries. Uncertainty could also be caused by market sentiments. Based on their second hypothesis they expected that there was a connection between the relative explanatory power of accounting information provided by non-traditional companies, and the state of the economy and stock market. They expected that accounting information was less relevant in periods of time when investors have high expectations for the future. Such a loss of relevance affects the non-traditional

companies much more. Finally, they expected that the low incremental value relevance of earnings in hot markets can be mediated by including a measure of sustainable earnings at the company level.
 Hamberg and Novak (2007) found that while companies in traditional industries provide slightly more value-relevant accounting information there is no substantial difference in the level of value relevance across industries over an extended period of time. They also found a substantially higher variance in value relevance within the non-traditional industries. Such variations, in the long-term perspective, are also an indicator of value relevance. They found strong evidence that macro-economic factors and market sentiments affect the relative value relevance of accounting information for firms in service industry. They documented that while reported earnings are value relevant, measures of sustainable earnings provide incremental value relevance to investors.
Francis and Schipper (1999) found no significant difference in the value relevance of earnings when comparing high-technology and low-technology stocks for the period 1952-1994. Although they found some evidence that balance sheet information explains a higher portion of the variability in prices for low-technology firms than for high-technology firms, they documented significant increases over time in the explained variability of this relation for both samples of firms. They concluded that any evidence of a decline in value relevance cannot be attributed to the increasing number and importance of high-technology firms in the economy. 
However, these studies were carried out in developed markets and do not cover the large stock price increases in the late nineties and following the substantial drop at the recent times in the world stock exchanges, there is a need to analyze the value relevance across the industries in Nigeria. Therefore, to test if the inclusion of more recent time periods changes the conclusion of the afore-mentioned; this study analyzes value relevance between 2002 and 2008. It tests the ideas of changes in value relevance in a particularly interesting setting; namely the Nigerian Stock Exchange which is an emerging market.
2.8
Nigerian Stock Market Development and Economic Growth
The stock market is very vital to any economy because it encourages savings and real investment in any healthy economic environment (Ologunde, Elumilade and Asaolu, 2006). This is achieved through aggregate savings that are channeled into real investment via stock market exchange which increases the stock market growth and invariably economic growth of the country. In other words, through the secondary market, the stock market converts long – term or perpetual investment enlarged which in turn accelerate economic growth.
It has been posited that without high levels of domestic savings, broadly based human capital, good macro-economic management and limited price distortions, there would be no basis for economic growth. Investment is one of the driving forces of economic growth (Wilson, 2005). It is widely believed that savings and investment must go hand in hand for sustained economic growth.  Thus policies to assist the financial sector, especially banks whose traditional business is financial intermediation which captures non-financial savings, to increase household and corporate savings are considered central.
In the developed world, stock market is the crucial tool that drives any economy on it path to growth and development. According to Osaze (2007) capital market of which stock market is sub set aids economic growth in the following ways:
1. Promotion of commodities exchanges to facilitate liquidity for agricultural products in an organized market;
2. Internationalization of capital market by cross-border listings, cross listing on other stock exchange and provision of investment information on all securities listed on the Nigeria Stock Exchange to the international community. This encourages foreign inflows of capital through equity;

3. Changes in ownership of businesses take place through the purchase and/or sale of stock and

4.  Promotion of small and medium sized industries through the second – tier Securities Market.

However, some problems still affect the development of Nigerian Stock Market. The Nigerian Stock Market is still very small in relation to other emerging markets. As at 2003, South Africa, Brazil, Egypt and Malaysia had equity listings of 450, 399, 1148 and 865 respectively, while Nigeria had only 214 equity listings (Osaze, 2007). Not only that, the proportion of the adult population that own ordinary shares is till rather small as follows:
Nigeria…………………………………..4%

United Kingdom……………………….16%

France………………………………….18%

Japan……………………………………18%

Germany……………………………….19%

United States……………………………21%

Sweden…………………………………22%

Hong Kong…………………………….38%

Extracted from Osaze, 2007.
Aside the afore mentioned, in the Nigerian Stock Market there is high concentration with the top ten companies controlling 47% of market capitalization between 1999 – 2004 (Osaze, 2007). This makes the market venerable to shocks and price instabilities from the dominating stocks of banking sectors in 2008 after the bubble burst. It is therefore important that any consideration of a stock market in an emerging economy must be closely linked with its expected essential purpose (Ojo, 2010).
2.9
Company and Allied Matters Act 1990, Investment and Securities Act 1991 and Financial   Statements
In 1990, Company and Allied Matters Act (CAMA 1990) and the subsequent amendments were enacted to regulate the incorporation and activities of all corporate bodies in Nigeria. Sections 541 – 623 are about “dealing in the securities of companies and vests its administration on the Corporate Affairs Commission. Indeed, the CAMA, 1990 with the subsequent amendments is a comprehensive securities law for the country as it deals with a wide range of issues such as invitation of public to a securities offer, registration of securities, prospectuses, allotment, unit trusts, reconstructions, mergers and takeovers as well as insider trading”(SEC,1999).  A listed company on the First Tier or Main Board of the Nigerian Stock Exchange, must among others, submit quarterly, half –yearly and annual accounts to the Stock for presentation to market operators. Section 334 requires directors of every company to prepare financial statements in respect of each year of the company. S.334(2) states that the financial statements  should include:

a)
statement of accounting policies;

b)
the balance sheet as at the last date of the year;

c)
a profit and loss account or, in the case of company not trading for profit,  an income and expenditure account for the year;

d)
notes on the account;

e)
the auditors’ report;

f)
the directors’ report;

g)
a statement of source and application of funds (now replaced by statement of cash flow since 1997);

h)
a value added statement of the year;

i)
a five-year financial summary; and

g)
for holding company, a group financial statement.

Section 336 requires companies that have subsidiaries to prepare yearly the individual and group accounts. The group financial statement should comprise a consolidation of balance sheet and the profit and loss account of the company and its subsidiaries. In addition, Section 337 shows the detailed of form and content of group financial statements which should comply with the requirements of Schedule 2 of the Act.
Figure 2.1
Summary of Selected Previous Work

	SR/No 
	Author(s)
	Year
	Title 
	Data
	Method of Analysis

	1


	Ball and Brown
	1968
	An Empirical Evaluation of Accounting Income 


Numbers
	Earnings and returns 
	Regression

	2
	Easton, P. E. and T. S. Harris
	1991
	Earnings as an Explanatory Variable for Returns
	Earnings, returns, book value
	Univariate and multi variate regressions

	3
	Harris, T. S., M. Lang and H. P. Moller  
	1994
	The Value Relevance of German Accounting Measures: An Empirical Analysis
	Earnings, book value, dividends  and share price
	Regression

	4
	Ohlson,  J. A..
	1995
	Accounting Earnings, Book Value and Dividends: The Theory of the Clen Surplus Equation
	Earnings, price, Book Value and Dividends 
	Regression

	5
	Collins, D. W., E.L. Maydew and I.S. Weiss
	1997
	Relevance of
Earnings and Book Value Over the Past Forty Years
	Stock prices, book value  and earnings
	R2

	6
	Brown, S, K. Lo and T.Z. Lys
	1998
	Use of R-squared in Accounting Research: 

Measuring Changes in  Value Relevance over the Last Four Decades
	Stock prices, book value of  equity per share and EPS
	R2

	7
	Dontoh, A., S. Radhakrishnan and J. Ronen
	2001
	Is stock Price a Good Measure 

for Assessing Value-Relevance of Earnings? An Empirical Test
	Stock prices, book value  and earnings
	Regression

	8
	Alali and Foote
	2008
	Earnings-Returns Association in an Emerging 

Market:  An Empirical Analysis of Abu Dhabi Securities Market
	Earnings and return 
	adjusted R-squares

	9
	Beisland, Hamberg and Novak,
2010
	2010
	The Value Relevance Across 

Industries: What Happened to the New Economy?
	Earnings, Net Book Value, stock price, and return
	adjusted R-squares


Source:  Developed by Author (2010): Garnered from Literature Reviewed
CHAPTER THREE

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY
3.1
Introduction

This chapter discusses the method and procedures that were employed in carrying out the research. They include research design, study population, sample size, sampling technique, data gathering method, sources of data, instruments for data collection, description of questionnaire, validity and reliability of instruments, method of data analysis, instrument for data analysis, analytical framework, model specification and model estimation technique. 
3.2
Research Design

Two major approaches were used in the previous related studies to evaluate the value relevance of accounting information – aggregate stock market reaction and individual investors’ reaction to accounting information. This study adopted the two methods. The study made use of secondary data to investigate the aggregate Nigerian stock market reaction to accounting numbers following Bernard (1995); Brief and Zarowin (1999); Barth, Beaver and Landsman (2000) and Beisland (2009). 

The individual investors’ reaction to accounting information was examined using the survey method. Survey method was adopted to obtain first hand information from the users of accounting numbers. The emphasis of survey research design was on the difference in perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of various items of financial statement. In the past studies, particularly in the United States and United Kingdom, only secondary data were used to determine the usefulness of accounting information (Ball and Brown, 1968 and Anderson, 1975). In this study, however, it was considered pertinent to find out the opinions of users of accounting information using survey method. The users of accounting information were grouped into institutional investors and individual investors. 

3.2.1
Study Population
The geographical location of this study was Nigeria. Study population for the aggregate market reaction to accounting information consisted of all the listed companies on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The total number of two hundred and thirteen companies was listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange as at 2008 (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2009:34).  The study population for the survey research was all Stockbrokers and individuals in two hundred and forty-six registered stock brokerage firms in Nigeria. There was a total two hundred and forty-six registered and active brokerage firms in Nigeria as at 2008 (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2009).  

3.2.2
Sample Size

The study focused on 68 companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange during the period - 2002 to 2008 for the aggregate market reaction to accounting information. The sample size was limited to 68 companies because of non availability of data. These problems arose either from missing data as a result of de –listing (post–selection bias due, for instance, to bankruptcy) or missing data as a result of initial listing (ex–ante selection bias due to initial listing in emerging market) or acquisition or merger.   Missing data problems are peculiar with almost databases, but deemed to be worse in developing economies (Nagel, 2001 and Negash, 2008). 

Panel data were used to overcome the problems associated with missing data (Negash, 2008). The panel data of 68 companies over a period of 7 years resulted in 476 observations. The firms were selected based on the following criteria:

1. The company was listed  on Nigerian Stock Exchange during the period and
2. The firm has the basic financial statement data. 

In the survey study, the opinion of participants-the Stock Broker or Investment Adviser or Portfolio Manager and individual investors- from each   of the 152 firms were considered. The Stock Brokers, Investment Advisers and Portfolio Managers represented the opinion of institutional investors  in all the two hundred and forty-six registered stock brokerage firms in Nigeria as at 2008 (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2009). 
The opinion of the investment analysts(stock brokers, Investment Advisers and Portfolio Managers) in these stock brokerage firms is important  because they are the primary users of financial accounting information and if accounting information is value relevant to them, then, it will be considered as value relevant to other institutional investors (Mangena, 2004).  As stated before, accounting information is one of the most significant sources of financial information for the investment analysts and valuing the companies is one of the most important applications to which they address themselves (Rees, 1995). The opinion of individual investor is also crucial to represent the interest of other investors. The views of institutional and individual investors about accounting data were obtained from 152 stock brokerage firms at the Nigerian Stock Exchange, Lagos and other parts of Nigeria. This initial sample is supported by Yaro Yamani sample selection method (Guilford  and Frucher, 1973) as stated below:
According to Yaro Yamani, n = N / [1 + (Ne2)], 

Where: 
n is the sample size, 

N is the population, 

e is the error limit (0.05 on the basis of 95% confidence level)

Therefore, 
n = 246 / [1 +246 (0.052)]


n = 246/ 1.5625 



n = 152
Based on afore calculation, the sample size of 152 with error limit of 5% is considered appropriate for this study. In spite of this, due to expected low response rate, a total number of 300 copies of the questionnaire were distributed. A low response was experienced based on the fact that the copies of the questionnaires were sent to different parts of Nigeria.  Out of three hundred of questionnaires that were sampled, two hundred copies of the questionnaires were administered in Lagos, while one hundred copies were distributed in other stock brokerage registered offices in Nigeria. The preponderance of the sample in the Lagos City is due to the fact that   out of total two hundred and forty-six registered and active brokerage firms in Nigeria as at 2008, two hundred and forty-five (99.95%) have their registered offices in Lagos (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2009:28). The concentration of the stock brokerage firms in this part of the country explains why the research work was focused majorly on Lagos Stock Brokerage firms and Nigerian Stock Exchange, Lagos which is the oldest of all the Nigerian Stock Exchanges; though, opinions of investors in other parts of Nigeria were considered. Investors in Nigeria are generally a mix of institutions and individuals (Okereke-Onyiuke, 2008). 
Out of the 300 copies of questionnaire sent out to various respondents, only 173 were duly completed and returned and all were used in the analysis. This number is marginally more than the computed sample size above.

3.2.3
Sampling Technique


For the aggregate market reaction to accounting numbers, the study employed multi-phase sampling method (Phillip and Fetter, 1999).  In multiphase sampling, some of the same sampling units are employed at the different phases of sampling. In its simplest form, multiphase sampling is a sampling method in which certain items of information are drawn from the whole units of a sample and certain other items of information are taken from the subsample. In this study, the firms were first selected if they were listed and active on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (between January, 2002 and December, 2008). Applying this criterion, the initial sample size was 144, but reduced further to 68 firms when the criterion of data availability was applied.

 In order to know the users’ views about accounting information, sample was drawn from all the two hundred and forty- six registered stock brokerage firms at the Nigerian Stock Exchange using a hybrid of two methods- purposive and random sampling techniques. It was expected that the combination of two methods and their respective advantages would provide a more rigorous and representative analysis. The procedure of the hybrid involved first purposively selecting the cities where registered and active dealing firms of Stock brokers were most concentrated and then randomly selecting the firms in those cities. Purposive sampling technique was adopted by selecting a sample unit based on specific criteria and generalization of result is limited to those who have met the criteria. The following were the conditions:

1) The firm was a registered dealing member in the Nigerian Stock Exchange at the time of the study;

2) The company has a stock broker who trades in the Nigerian Stock Exchange and individual who has shares in Nigerian Stock market. 
3.2.4
Data Description
Panel data are used in this study for hypotheses (1)-(3). This is the combination of time series with cross-sections to enhance the quality and quantity of data in ways that would be impossible using only one of these two dimensions (Gujarati, 2003). The repeated observations of enough cross-sections and panel analysis permit the study of dynamics of change with short time series. 

While most research in this area has concentrated almost absolutely on explaining price by book value and reported earnings, our focus is on the relation between share price, book value, earnings and dividends. Proxies for accounting information used in this study included earnings-per-share (EPS), dividends-per-share (DPS)  and net book value per share (Brief and Zarowin 1999; Callao, Cuellar and  Jarne 2006 and Chang et al, 2008). The length of observations may vary- they could be daily, quarterly, yearly- but yearly observations were used in this study, which is the most typical measure used by researchers (Barth, Beaver and Landsman, 1998; Barth et al, 2000; Francis and Schipper, 1999 and Beisland, 2009).  For survey of user’s opinion, the researcher collected data through a questionnaire administered to capital market operators – the Stockbrokers, Investment Managers, Financial Analysts, Accountants and individuals.
3.2.5
Sources and Data Gathering Method  

In this study, both primary and secondary data were used. The primary data were collected through survey questionnaires administered on the respondents. Related literature was reviewed before the questionnaire was formulated (see Appendix 1).

The secondary data - earnings-per -share, dividends and book value were obtained from the Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, Annual Financial Reports of companies quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange and the Nigerian Stock Market Annual. The data of share prices were collected from the Nigerian Stock Exchange database. Only companies with at least a number of the accounting figures such as annual earnings, book value, share information and total assets or shareholders equity were included.
3.2.6 Questionnaire

Questionnaire was used in this study to elicit data from respondents on value relevance of various items of financial statements. The questionnaire has six sections that contain a combination of closed and open-ended questions. The first section is to collect bio-data of respondents. It contains data on respondent -investor, sex, age, qualifications, profession and work experience.  Sections B - F contain information on value relevance of various items of financial statements as stipulated by Companies and Allied Matters Act 1990 and the subsequent amendments -profit and loss account, balance sheet, value added statement, cash flow statement and other items of financial statements - for investment decision making in Nigerian. The users of accounting numbers were asked to rank each item based on the attached scale of perceived relevance of accounting data by the user.  A five-point Likert-type scale was used following Myburgh (2001). The scales adopted are:  Very strong (4 ); Strong (3); Fairly strong(2) Weak (1) and Very weak (0). Respondents specified their choices by ticking one of these alternatives. 
3.2.7
Validity of Research Instrument

Validity tests were carried out to check the ability of the research instrument to measure the variables it was intended to measure. Both face validity and content validity were employed. Face validity involves an analysis of whether the instrument appears to be on a valid scale and contained the important items to be measured. Content validity on the other hand, evaluates the degree to which a test appears to measure a concept analysis of the items in order to ensure an adequate coverage of the scope of study by the measuring instrument. To achieve this, the questionnaire was given to the supervisors and experts in the field to review the content and appropriateness of the questions in relation to the stated objectives of the study. 
3.2.8
Reliability of Research Instrument

To ensure stability, dependability and predictability of the research instrument, reliability test was conducted. Reliability of the research instrument was checked to determine if the scale consistently reflects the construct it was measuring. It has to do with accuracy, precision or consistency of a measuring instrument. Methods of reliability test are test retest, spilt halves and alternate form among others. Test-retest reliability measures the stability of the research instrument (Gronlund and Linn, 1990). This was done by administering the research instrument twice on the same set of respondents at different times.  It intends to determine the extent to which a measure, procedure or instrument yields the same result on repeated trials. Split halves method evaluates the internal consistency of the instrument. In this method, research instrument was split into two equivalent halves and the test score correlated together. The alternate form method tests the reliability of research instrument by administering the same measuring instrument on different dimensions of the same variables. This study employed split halves method to measure the degree to which the items that made up the scale were all measuring the same essential attribute. This was estimated with correlation coefficients (Pearson r) and Cronbach’s coefficient alpha. Correlation coefficients range from 0.00  to 1.00. Correlation coefficient of 0.00 means no correlation. While correlation coefficient  of 1.00  means perfect correlation. Cronbach’s coefficient alpha is the measure of scale’s internal consistency.
Figure 3.1: Reliability tests for the Survey Scale

	Number
	Type of Reliability Test
	Value
	Remarks

	1
	Cronbach’s Alpha
	0.934
	Very Reliable

	2
	Split-half 
	Part 1 =0.865
	Very Reliable

	
	
	Part 2 =0.920
	Very Reliable

	3
	Correlation Between Forms
	 0.719
	Very Reliable

	4
	Spearman-Brown Coefficient
	Equal Length=0.836
	Very Reliable

	4
	
	Unequal Length=0.836
	Very Reliable

	5
	Guttman  Split-half
	0.826
	Moderately reliable


Source: Field  Study (2010)

The result of reliability test of survey questionnaire is as shown in Figure 3.1. The Cronbach’s coefficient alpha which is the most common measure of internal consistency of scale is 0.934. It shows average correlation among the items of the scale. As a result, all questions without scale were excluded from reliability test. Other items of financial statements were not measured because they contain various different items of financial report. Split-half test and other tests were meant to corroborate Cronbach’s coefficient alpha. Split-half reliability test gives a value of 0.865 and 0.920 for each of the two halves respectively. Correlation Between Forms is 0.719; Spearman-Brown Coefficient Equal length is 0.836 and unequal length is 0.836 and Guttman  Split-half 0.826. Each and every one of these tests shows that the instrument is very reliable.
3.3   Analytical Framework

This study focused on value relevance of accounting information for equity valuation. Two approaches were adopted to achieve this- measurement and information perspectives as mentioned under the conceptual framework. The empirical research for aggregate market reaction to accounting information also known as measurement perspective was founded on Residual Income Valuation Model (Ohlson, 1995 and Bernard, 1995).  Ohlson’s (1995) residual income valuation model (RIVM) states that under certain conditions share price can be expressed as a weighted average of book value and earnings. In contrast, traditional valuation states that analysts assess firms with expected cash flows, earnings and dividends to explain stock prices. Therefore, the study considered accounting earnings and equity value; accounting earnings versus net book value and equity value; dividends and equity valuation and dividends versus net book value and equity valuation.

Accounting number is typically deemed to be value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001). Value relevance can be determined in short term event studies such as the one performed by Ball and Brown. However, value relevance can also be investigated in long term association studies (Alali and Foote, 2008 and Beisland, 2009). This research focused solely on long term association studies. All analyses were performed using yearly observations.
 3.3.1
Accounting Earnings and Equity Value

Evidence obtainable from several studies beginning from late 1960 to first half of 1990 shows that equity value is related to accounting earnings (Ball and Brown, 1968; Barth, Pankoff and Virgil, 1970; Collins and Kothari, 1989). These studies usually rely on Miller and Modigliani’s (1959) discounted dividend valuation model, based on (implicit) assumption that current earnings are an adequate characterization of expected future earnings and dividends (Spremann and Gantenbein, 2002). The theory states that the theoretical value of a company’s equity, EV, is the present value of all future dividends (d) or free cash flows to equity (FCE) (Beisland, 2009).
However, Ohlson’s Residual Income Valuation Model (RIVM) was adopted for this study.  RIVM as discussed under the theoretical framework has important implication for this study as it specifies the relation between equity values and accounting variables such as earnings, dividends and book value. This model in contrast to discounted dividend valuation model that make no appeal to book value or residual income, suggests that, as long as forecasts of earnings, book values and dividends follow clean surplus accounting (
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where, dt  denotes the dividend per share at time t;
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Finally, Ohlson assumes linear information dynamics, that is, abnormal earnings can be estimated with linear regression analysis. Then, the abnormal earnings for period t+1 are defined as:
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where the non-accounting information for period t+1 is defined as:


[image: image21.wmf]1

2

1

+

+

+

=

t

t

t

v

v

e

g





(3)
If these assumptions hold the price of a security is defined as:
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3.3.2
Accounting Earnings versus Net Book Value and Equity Value
In the mid of the 1990s, lots of researchers began to examine the role of book value of equity, using a valuation framework by Ohlson (1995) and Ohlson and Feltham(1995), which expresses share prices under certain conditions as a function of both earnings and book value of equity. Recent empirical work based on Ohlson and Feltham (1995) valuation framework provides evidence for the incremental relevance of book value in equity valuation. They claim that under some fairly reasonable assumptions, equity value is the present value of net financial assets plus present value of all future free cash flow operating activities (Feltham and Ohlson 1995):  
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where  

NFA
=
net financial assets (negative if debts exceeds gross financial assets)

CFO
=
free cash flow from operating activities
3.3.3
Dividends versus Net Book Value and Equity Valuation

Ohlson (1995) states that the dividends/cash flow model can be written solely as a function of accounting numbers if the assumption of clean surplus relation holds. Clean surplus relation that book value only changes with earnings and net capital investments and net dividends:
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=
book value of equity
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=
earnings
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=
dividends

Figure 3.2
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3.4   Model Specification

To analyze the importance of accounting information in determining share price in the Nigerian stock market, the model by Ohlson 1995 was adapted. Changes of share price were specified to be explained by earnings per share, dividend per share and net book value. The error term (eit ) is used as surrogate for all other variables not included. Ohlson (1995) depicts in his work that the value of a firm can be expressed as a linear function of book value and earnings.          

3.4.1 Models 
Model 1:  Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and     Book Value in Equity Valuation
The functional relationship between share price and the independent variables is specified as:

LDSP it  =  f(VRE it,,VRBV it) 
…………………………………..(1)
Where:

 LDSP  =   Last Day price per share

 
VRE 
=  Earnings per Share

VRBV
 =  Book Value per Share

 t 
=  Time dimension 
i 
= individual firm

LDSPit is stock price, and it is measured in the end of December at year t+1. VRBit is book value of equity per share at fiscal year end and VREit is earnings per share for year t.  
The above model is usually referred to as being based on the Ohlson (1995) valuation framework (Francis and Schipper, 1999; and Lev and Zarowin, 1999).  
However, this is only partially correct because Ohlson uses residual income, not income itself, in his valuation model. Specification (1) is only consistent with Ohlson’s valuation model if one admits earnings as being a proxy for residual income. Nonetheless, current earnings do have an association with value and past empirical studies confirm the model’s functionality.  
Model 2:  Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Dividends and Book Value in Equity Valuation
The model is specified in an implicit form:

LDSPit  =  f(VRDit,VRBVit)…………………………………….…………………(2)
Where, LDSP    =  Last Day Price per share

 
VRD 
 = Dividends per Share


VRBV
 = Book Value per Share

 t
 = Time dimension 
i 
= individual firm

APriori Expectation is such that  β  >0 (i =1-2). 

Positive relationship was assumed between accounting information and equity valuation because accounting information is presumed to be a crucial input into share valuation, it would be a surprise if no relationship or reaction could be measured (Penman, 1998).

Model 3: Investigating the Aggregate Market Reaction to Negative Earnings and     Book Value in Equity Valuation
The models are specified in an implicit form:

LDSP it  =  f(VRE it,,VRBV it, Dit,) …..………………..………………..(3)
LDSPit  =  f(VRDit,,VRBVit,Dit, )…………………….…….…………………(4)
Dummy variable was introduced to test the effect of negative earnings on regression specifications. 

Where, D is the dummy variable to represent whether earnings is positive or negative.
LDSP    =  
Last Day Price per share

 
VRD 
 = Dividends per Share


VRBV
 = Book Value per Share

VRE 
=  Earnings per Share
t 
= Time dimension 
i 
=  individual firm
Equations (1), (2), (3) and (4) can be expressed in explicit form as follows:

LDSPit
=
 β0 + β1VRE it  + β2VRBVit + eit………………………..(5)
for i =1,2…, N cross-section units and periods t = 1,2….T 
Where LDSP is the dependent variable; β0, β1,  β2 , are regression coefficients with unknown values; VRE and  VRBV are the independent variables and e is a random error component.     
LDSPit
=
 β0 +  β1VRD it + β2VRBVit + eit  ………………………..(6)
for i =1,2…, N cross-section units and periods t = 1,2….T 
Where LDSP   is the dependent variable; β0, β1,  β2 , are regression coefficients with unknown values to be estimated; VRD and  VRBV are the independent variables and e is a random error component.     
LDSPit
=
 β0 + β1VRE it  + β2VRBVit + β3D+ eit………………………..(7)
Where, D = 1 if VRE < 0, 0 otherwise
for i =1,2…, N cross-section units and periods t = 1,2….T 
Where LDSP is the dependent variable; β0, β1,  β2,  β3 are regression coefficients with unknown values; VRE and  VRBV are the independent variables; D is dummy variable and e is a random error component.     
LDSPit
=
 β0 +  β1VRD it + β2VRBVit + β3D + eit  ………………………..(8)
Where, D = 1 if VRE < 0, 0 otherwise
for i =1,2…, N cross-section units and periods t = 1,2….T 
Where LDSP   is the dependent variable; β0, β1,  β2 , β3 are regression coefficients with unknown values to be estimated; VRD and  VRBV are the independent variables; D is dummy variable and e is a random error component.     
Model 4:  Value Relevance of Accounting Information across Industries
LDSP it  =  f(VRE it,,VRBV it, COMDit,) …..………………..………………..(9)
LDSPit  =  f(VRDit,,VRBVit,COMDit, )…………………….…….…………………(10)
Where, COMD is the dummy variable to represent whether a company is a manufacturing or service sector
LDSP    =  Last Day Price per share

 
VRD 
 = Dividends per Share


VRBV
 = Book Value per Share

VRE 
=  Earnings per Share
t 
= Time dimension 
i 
= individual firm
Equations (9) and (10) can be expressed in explicit form as follows:

LDSPit
=
 β0 + β1VRE it  + β2VRBVit + β3COMDit + eit………………………..(11)
Where, COMD = 1 if the company is manufacturing, 0 otherwise
for i =1,2…, N cross-section units and periods t = 1,2….T 
Where LDSP is the dependent variable; β0, β1,  β2,  β3 are regression coefficients with unknown values; VRE and  VRBV are the independent variables; COMD is dummy variable and e is a random error component.     
APriori Expectation is such that  β  >0 (i =1-3). If earnings is more informative, it is expected that β1 > β2. in equations (5), (7) and (11). If book value is more informative, it was expected that β1 < β2 in equations (5), (7) and (11).
LDSPit
= β0 +  β1VRD it + β2VRBVit + β3COMDit + eit  ………………………..(12)
Where, COMD = 1 if the company is manufacturing, 0 otherwise
for i =1,2…, N cross-section units and periods t = 1,2….T 
Where LDSP   is the dependent variable; β0, β1,  β2 , β3 are regression coefficients with unknown values to be estimated; VRD and  VRBV are the independent variables; COMD is dummy variable and e is the random error component.     
APriori Expectation is such that  β  >0 (i =1-3). If dividends is more informative, it is expected that β1 > β2 in equations  (6), (8) and (12). If book value is more informative, it is expected that β1 < β2 in equations  (6), (8) and (12).
  Price model is also expected to increase when negative earnings are controlled for (Beisland, 2009). This means that regression model that incorporates the value relevance effect of negative earnings is expected to be better.
Figure 3.3
Summary of Independent and Dependent Variables
	Proxy
	Description of Independent and Dependent Variables


	Code
	Signs

	Price per share

	Dependent variable
	LDSP

	+

	Earnings per Share
	Independent variable
	VRE


	+

	Book Value per Share
	Independent variable
	VRBV


	+

	Dividends per Share
	Independent variable
	VRD


	+


Source: Field Study (2010)

3.5
Method of Analysis
The study of Ball and Brown (1968) laid foundations for what is now a popular method of accounting research. Various types of value relevance tests are used to examine issues such as predicting stock returns (Setiono and Strong, 1998), or significance of alternative accounting methods (Biddle and Lindahl, 1982 and Auer, 1996;) and standards (Bartov,Goldberg, and Kim, 2005).

In this study, our method of gauging information content of various accounting numbers panel as stated in equations (5), (6), (7), (8), (11), (12), (14), (15) and (16) were Ordinary Least Square, Random Effects Model and Fixed Effects Model (FEM).  OLS was used as a basis of comparison with the previous studies. However, using traditional Ordinary Least Square (OLS) alone may produce spurious regression problem that can lead to statistical bias (Granger and Newbold, 1974). This is because an implicit assumption underlying regression analysis involving time series data is that such data are stationary and since time series are not stationary. In other words, it is an assumption that is unlikely to hold in practice. Chang et al (2008), claim that stock prices and earnings are usually non-stationary. 
FE and RE methods were chosen because time series data are usually non- stationary (Mukherjee, White and Wuyts, 1998).  Specifically, we believe that, it is the deviation of the characteristics of accounting data from the assumptions of the applied methods and the misuse of statistical indicators that led to contradicting inferences in this literature. Therefore, random effects and fixed effects were adopted to prevent these problems.
Random effects also called a variance components model is used in the analysis of panel data when one assumes no fixed effects (that is no individual effects). The fixed effects model is a special case of the random effects model (Christensen, 2002). Conceptually, a variable's effects might be treated as random effects if the levels of the variable that are included in the study as a sample drawn from some larger (conceptual) population of levels that could (in principle) have been selected. Instead of thinking of each unit as having its own systematic baseline, the researchers thought of each intercept as the result of a random deviation from some mean intercept.  The intercept was a draw from some distribution for each unit, and it was independent of the error for a particular observation.  One key difference between fixed and random effects is in the kind of information desired from the analysis of the effects.  
In the case of fixed effects, researchers are usually interested in making explicit comparisons of one level against another.  A “fixed variable” is one that is assumed to be measured without error. It is also assumed that the values of a fixed variable in one study are the same as the values of the fixed variable in another study. A random effects model is computationally more intense than a fixed effects model (Christensen,2002). “Random variables” are assumed to be values that are drawn from a larger population of values and thus will represent them. One can think of the values of random variables as representing a random sample of all possible values of that variable. Thus, the study is expected to generalize the results obtained with a random variable to all other possible values of that random variable. Put differently, a fixed-effects analysis assumes that the subjects measurements are drawing from are fixed, and that the differences between them are therefore not important. It can therefore be assumed that the subjects (and their variances) are identical. In contrast, a random-effects analysis assumes that the measurements are some kind of random sample drawn from a larger population, and that therefore the variance between them is interesting. It is assumed that this can reveal something about the larger population. Since the study is homogeneous, fixed effects and random effects models are similar. Nevertheless, Hausman test was performed to determine whether random or fixed effect is more efficient.
On the other hand, the survey of investors’ perception about value relevance of various items of financial statements for investment decision was gauged using t-tests. The t-test was used to compare the means of two groups-institutional investors and individual investors.  The t - test is considered as "robust" if one of the assumptions of using parametric test is doubtful. The following are assumed when using parametric test:

1. Data are interval or ratio
2. Normally distributed data (skew and kurtosis are between –1 and 1)

3. Homogeneity of variance = variance is equal between groups (variance can be up to 4 times different from each other, but no more than that) *this assumption only applies to independent design.
CHAPTER FOUR

DATA PRESENTATION AND ANALYSIS 

4.1
Introduction

In this chapter, both secondary and primary data were analysed. In order to aid easy understanding, the data are presented using tables and showing frequency distributions, means and standard deviations. To start with, the analysis of secondary data was carried out using Ordinary Least Squared (OLS), Fixed Effects (FE) and Random Effects (RE). This was followed by the analysis of primary data –administered questionnaires – using Independent- Sample t-test. The arrangement of the above and the summary of the main findings are based on the afore-formulated hypotheses for this study. 
4.2
Data Presentation and Analysis of Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Information 

This section presents the descriptive statistics of summarized variables over the entire panel of aggregate market reaction to accounting earnings and book value in equity valuation, results and interpretations of OLS, FE and RE for aggregate market reaction to accounting earnings and book value in equity valuation and results and interpretations of OLS, FE and RE for aggregate market reaction to accounting dividends and book value in equity valuation. The descriptive statistics for the variables - last trading day share price (ldsp), net book value (vrbv), earnings per share (vre) and dividend per share (vrd)- are given below.

4.2.1
Summarized Variables over Entire Panel of Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and     Book Value in Equity Valuation

	Table 4.1 Summary of Entire Panel of Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and     Book Value in Equity Valuation


	Variable
	Mean
	Std. Dev.
	Min
	Max

	ldsp    
	
	
	
	

	Overall
	19.68628   
	37.47032
	0
	331.19

	Between
	
	33.611
	.9571429
	178.8257

	Within
	
	16.9881
	-94.41514
	172.7249

	Vrbv
	
	
	
	

	Overall
	597.8265   
	1876.358
	-1095      
	28607

	Between
	
	1344.335
	-185.2857     
	8701.5

	Within
	
	1343.021
	-7514.673    
	20503.33

	Vre
	
	
	
	

	Overall
	80.66243
	152.6249
	-931        
	1008

	Between
	
	117.5091
	-161   
	628.4286

	Within
	
	98.10852
	-689.3376
	702.6624

	Vrd
	
	
	
	

	Overall
	44.82846
	102.402
	0
	910

	Between
	
	85.77734
	0
	585.1429

	Within
	
	56.62224
	-294.3144
	615.9713


Source: Field Study (2010)
Table 4.1 reports the summary of three accounting variables and share prices of the entire panel of 68 companies over 7years. The overall average ldsp is N19.69 with standard deviation of approximately 38k. This means that the share price can deviate from mean to both sides by 38k. The highest share price recorded on the last trading of 2008 is N331.19 by Mobil oil PLC. The minimum is 0 due to the fact that some companies share prices were not published during the period. The minimum and the maximum between the companies are .9571429 and 178.8257 respectively with standard deviation of approximately 34% while the minimum and the maximum within the companies are -94.41514  and 172.7249 respectively with standard deviation of approximately 17%. 

From the table, the overall average of vrbv is N597.83 with standard deviation of 
N18.76. This reveals high dispersion of the net book values are among the studied companies. The highest net book value for the period is N28,607 by Intercontinental Bank Plc in 2008.  However, the minimum and the maximum of vrbv between the companies are N-1.85 and N87.02 respectively with standard deviation of approximately N13.44 while the minimum and the maximum within the companies are N-75.15and N205.03 respectively with standard deviation of approximately N13.44.
The overall mean of vre is 81k with standard deviation of 152%. This means that the earnings deviated from mean to both sides by 152%. The highest earnings recorded during the period is 1008k by Mobil oil PLC while the minimum is -931k. The minimum and the maximum between the companies are -161k and 628k respectively with standard deviation of approximately 118% while the minimum and the maximum within the companies are -689k and 703k respectively with standard deviation of approximately 98%.
The average of 45k dividends was paid by the companies with overall standard deviation of 102%. This means that the dividends varied from mean to both sides by 102%. The highest dividend recorded during the period is 910k by Mobil oil PLC while the minimum is 0. This result shows that some companies did not pay dividends during the period covered. The minimum and the maximum between the companies are 0 and 585k respectively with standard deviation of approximately 86% while the minimum and the maximum within the companies are -294k and 616k respectively with standard deviation of approximately 67%. 

4.2.2 Results and Interpretation of   Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation
	Table 4.2 Results of Model 1: Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation

	Dependent Variable: LDSP

	Estimator 
	OLS
	FE
	RE

	Variable
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob

	VRE
	.1073168*

(8.99)   
	0.000

	.028978*

(3.19)
	0.002


	.0380333*

(4.27)   
	0.000



	VRBV
	-.00004
	0.963(-0.05)   
	.0005757(0.96)
	0.335
	.0005402(0.91)
	0.361


	Cons
	10.34729*

(5.85)   
	0.000


	15.19569*

(14.70)
	0.000


	14.86891*

(4.17)
	0.000



	R2
	0.1602
	
	
	
	
	

	Adj R2 
	0.1564
	
	
	
	
	

	Prob. F
	0.0000*
	
	
	
	
	

	R2  within
	
	
	0.0310
	
	0.0308
	

	R2between
	
	
	0.2347
	
	0.2446
	

	R2overall
	
	
	0.1500
	
	0.1546
	

	Wald Ch2
	
	
	
	
	20.58
	

	Prb.Ch2
	
	
	
	
	0.000*
	

	Hausman Test
	
	chi2(2) 29.88 

Prob>chi2 = 0.0000*
	
	

	No of obser.
	449
	449
	449

	Note:
* significant at the 1% level


Numbers in parentheses  are  t- values 


Z test in Prentices, bold face and italicized

LDSP = Last trading  day share price; VRE = Earnings per Share; VRBV = Net Book Value
LDSP are stated in naira while VRD and VRBV are in kobo


Source: Field Study (2010)
Interpretation of Results

Table 4.2 shows the results of all applied variables in the analysis of model1. The table presents the results of Ordinary Least Square (OLS), Fixed Effect (FE) and Random Effect (RE) for the Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation. In this model, earnings (VRE) is highly significant at 1% level in explaining share price. The output of OLS indicates that VRE has a larger beta coefficient, absolute terms than Net book value (VRBV). Beta value measures the degree to which each of the explanatory variables affects the dependent variables.  Using OLS, the coefficient of VRE is 0.107. It means that a unit change in earnings will lead to approximately 11 kobo change in share price. In other words, 1 kobo change in earnings will lead to approximately 11 kobo change in share price. This is because share prices are stated in Naira while earnings are stated in kobo.  However, earnings has low beta coefficient when FE and RE are employed. The beta coefficients when FE and RE are employed are 0.028978 and 0.038033 respectively, both are significant at 1% levels.  This implies that a unit (1 kobo) change in earnings will lead to 3 kobo change in share price for FE and 1 unit (1 kobo) change in earnings will lead to 4 kobo change share price using RE. With OLS, the Net book value beta coefficient of -.00004 which is not significant.  However, this conclusion changes slightly when FE and RE are used. FE and RE are 0.0005757 and 0.0005402 respectively although not statistically significant.  The reason for the insignificance of VRBV could be that the share price does not reflect the actual situation for the firm. Another reason is perhaps most investors still depend on the earnings performance rather than the Net Book Value. Besides, there may be other factors affecting a firm’s performance other than the variables used in the study. 
The t tests of VRE are 8.99 and 3.19 for OLS and FE respectively while the t tests of  VRBV are  -0.05 and 0.96 for OLS and FE respectively. The purpose of the t-test is to check the individual significance of each explanatory variable. For t test, any value less than 2 is not significant.  The t test further confirms that VRBV is not significant in explaining share price. However, R2 is 0.1602 which is higher than both FE and RE.  Accounting number is typically deemed to be value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001).  F statistics is 0.000 which is highly significant. F statistics is a measure of joint significance of all explanatory variables of the model used.  This may provide support for the proposition that: first, there is a positive relationship between earnings, book value and stock market in the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). Second, earnings has great information content (comparable to net book value).  Our results are consistent with the findings of previous studies such as Ohlson (1989), Pourheydari, Aflatooni and Nikbakhat (2008) and  Beisland, Hamberg and Novak (2010) among others. 
The results of Hausman test are: chi22 is 29.88 and P is 0.0000. This implies that Random Effect (RE)  is more efficient than Fixed Effect(FE). Hausman Test was performed to determine the model that is more efficient. If Probability (P) value is significant, then, RE is more efficient than FE. Also, Wald test provides a likelihood-ratio test of the model’s adequacy.  The Wald test using Stata presents p-values instead of reporting the critical values (Baum, 2006). The p-values measure the evidence against H0. They are the largest significant level at which a test can be conducted without rejecting H0. In model1, the p-value is 0.000.   The smaller the  p-value, the more evident to reject H0. 

2.3 Results and Interpretation of Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Dividends and Book Value in Equity Valuation
	Table 4.3 Result of Model 2: Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Dividends and Book Value in Equity Valuation

	Dependent Variable: LDSP

	Estimator 
	OLS
	FE
	RE

	Variable
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob

	VRD
	.2272854*

(12.79)
	0.000


	0.053429**

(2.80)
	0.005


	.0934751*

(5.31)   
	0.000



	VRBV
	.000569

(0.73)   
	0.463


	.0006935

(1.17)
	.0.244


	.000657

(1.11)
	0.268



	Cons
	9.039735*

(5.58)
	0.000


	15.17849*

(14.08)
	0.000


	14.0522*

(4.42)
	0.000



	R2
	0.2740
	
	
	
	
	

	Adj R2 
	0.2707
	
	
	
	
	

	Prob. F
	0.0000
	
	
	
	
	

	R2  within
	
	
	0.0251
	
	0.0244


	

	R2between
	
	
	0.4232
	
	0.4388


	

	R2overall
	
	
	0.2601
	
	0.2713
	

	Wald Ch2
	
	
	
	
	30.68
	

	Prb.Ch2
	
	
	
	
	0.000*
	

	Hausman Test
	
	chi2(2)   =   42.57
Prob>chi2 =    0.0000*


	
	

	No of obser.
	450
	450
	450

	Note:
* significant at the 1% level


Numbers in parentheses  are  t- values 


Z test in Prentices, bold face and italicized

LDSP = Last trading  day share price; VRD =Dividends per Share; VRBV = Net Book Value
LDSP are stated in naira while VRD and VRBV are in kobo


Source: Field Study (2010)
Table 4.3 shows the results of all applied variables in the analysis of model2. The table presents the results of Ordinary Least Square (OLS), Fixed Effect (FE) and Random Effect (RE) for the Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting dividends and Book Value in Equity Valuation. Looking at this result, dividends (VRD) is highly significant at 1% level in explaining share price. Beta value of OLS which is a measure of the degree to which each of the explanatory variables affects the dependent variables indicates that VRD has a larger beta coefficient, absolute terms than Net book value (VRBV).  Using OLS, the coefficient of VRD is 0.227. It means that a unit (1 kobo) change in dividends will lead to approximately 23 kobo change in share price while VRBV is .000569 which is not significant. However, FE and RE are used, dividends has low beta coefficient. The beta coefficients of FE and RE are 0.053 and 0.093 respectively and they are significant at 1% levels.  This implies that a unit (1 kobo) change in dividends will lead to 5 kobo change in share price using FE and 1 unit (1 kobo) change in dividends will lead to 9 kobo change share price employing RE (It is important to note that share prices are in naira while dividends and net book values are kobo). With OLS, Net book value beta coefficient is -.00004 which is not significant.  However, this conclusion changes slightly, though not significant, when FE and RE are used. FE and RE are 0.0005757 and 0.0005402 respectively.  The reason for the insignificance of VRBV, as in the previous model, could be that the share price does not reflect the actual situation of the firm. Another reason could be that most investors still depend on the earnings of performance rather than the Net Book Value. Besides, there may be other factors affecting a firm’s performance other than the variable used in the study. 

The t tests of VRE are 8.99 and 3.19 for OLS and FE respectively while the t tests of  VRBV are  -0.05 and 0.96 for OLS and FE respectively. The purpose of the t-test is to check the individual significance of each explanatory variable. For t test, any value less than 2 is not significant.  The t test further confirms that VRBV is not significant in explaining share price. However, OLS R2 is 0.1602 and is significant and higher than the overall R2 both FE and RE which are 0.2601 and 0.2713.
 Accounting number is typically deemed to be value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001).  F statistics is 0.000 which is highly significant. F statistics is a measure of joint significance of all explanatory variables of the model used.  This may provide support for the proposition that: first, there is a positive relationship between earnings, book value and stock market in the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). Second, earnings has great information content (comparable to net book value) but the overall result shows that dividends has greater information content than both earnings and net book value. More importantly, when book value is a poor indicator of value (for example, due to the presence of unrecognized assets), and when earnings are transitory, dividends have the greatest value relevance of the three measures. Our results are consistent with the findings of previous studies such as Pourheydari, Aflatooni and Nikbakhat (2008) and  Beisland, Hamberg and Novak (2010) among others.  
Results of Hausman test are: chi22 is 42.57 and P value is 0.0000. This shows that Random Effect (RE)  is more efficient than Fixed Effect(FE). Hausman Test was performed to determine the model that is more efficient. The test evaluates the significance of fixed versus random effects. It helps one to evaluate if a statistical model corresponds to the data. It is adopted when comparing fixed- and random-effects regressions based on small to moderate samples because they  ensure that the differenced covariance matrix will be positive definite. If Probability (P) value is significant, then RE is more efficient than FE. A fixed-effects analysis assumes that the subjects from which measurements are drawn from are fixed, and that the differences between firms are therefore not of interest. In other words, variance within each subject all lumped in together - essentially assuming that the subjects (and their variances) are identical. By contrast, a random-effects analysis assumes that the measurements are some kind of random sample drawn from a larger population, and that therefore the variance between companies is interesting and can reveal something about the larger population. The most fundamental difference between the two is of inference. A fixed-effects analysis can only support inference about the group of measurements (subjects) used. A random-effects analysis, by contrast, allows the researcher to infer something about the population from which study drew the sample. 
In general, random effects is efficient, and should be used (over fixed effects) if the assumptions underlying it are believed to be satisfied (Hausman, 1978). This is tested by running random effects, then fixed effects, and Hausman specification test. If the test rejects, then random effects is biased and fixed effects is the correct estimation procedure. In this case, random effect is not biased. 
In addition, Wald test was conducted. It provides a likelihood-ratio test of the model’s adequacy.  The test using Stata presents p-values instead of reporting the critical values (Baum,2006). The p-values measure the evidence against H0. They are the largest significant level at which a test can be conducted without rejecting H0. In model1, the p-value is 0.000.  The smaller the p-value, the more evident to reject H0. 

Hypothesis Tests 

Hypothesis 1 
H0:
Share prices of firms listed on Nigerian Stock Market are not significantly affected by the accounting information.
Decision: The aforesaid findings are contrary to the proposed hypothesis since F statistics is 0.000 – as stated above - highly significant. Subsequently, the prices of share listed on Nigeria Stock Exchange are significantly affected by the accounting information. Therefore, null hypothesis which states that the Share prices of firms listed on Nigerian Stock Market are not significantly affected by the accounting information is rejected.
4.3
Data Presentation and Analyze of Difference in value relevance of accounting information Across the Industry
4.3.1 Result and Interpretation of Difference in Value Relevance of Accounting Information across Industries: Earnings, Net Book Value and dummy variable
	Table 4.4 Result of Model 3: Value Relevance of  Accounting Information across Industries: Earnings, Net Book Value and dummy  variable

	Dependent Variable: LDSP

	Estimator 
	OLS
	FE
	RE

	Variable
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob

	VRE
	.1042
(8.71)
	0.000
	.1064
(8.95)
	0.000
	.1053
(8.86)
	0.000

	VRBV
	.00024
(0.28)
	0.783
	-.00013
(-0.15)
	0.879
	.00005
(0.06)
	0.954

	Comd.
	9.231
(2.28)
	0.023
	9.108

(2.28)
	0.023
	9.169
(2.29)
	0.022

	Cons
	2.864
(0.77)
	0.44
	3.0387
(0.83)
	0.408
	2.997
(0.75)
	0.454

	R2
	0.17
	
	
	
	
	

	Adj R2 
	0.164
	
	
	
	
	

	Prob. F
	0.000
	
	0.0060
	
	
	

	R2  within
	
	
	0.2887
	
	0.176
	

	R2between
	
	
	0.0050
	
	0.0164
	

	R2overall
	
	
	0.2772
	
	0.17
	

	Wald Ch2
	
	
	
	
	93.12
	

	Prb.Ch2
	
	
	
	
	0.000
	

	No of obser.
	449
	449
	449

	Note:
* significant at the 1% level


Numbers in parentheses  are  t- values 


Z test in Prentices, bold face and italicized

LDSP = Last trading  day share price; VRE =Earnings per Share; VRBV = Net Book Value; 

Comd =Dummy for company difference
LDSP are stated in naira while VRE and VRBV are in kobo


Source: Field Study (2010)
The model summary in table 4.4 presents the results of investigation of difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries using ordinary least Square (OLS), fixed effects (FE) and random effects (RE) to analyse “earnings” model 3.
In order to investigate difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries, dummy variable was introduced to separate manufacturing sector from service sector. When examining individual industries, pooling is preferable to running separate annual regressions because there are too few firms per cross-section, especially when we separate by permanent versus transitory earnings (Brief and Zarowin, 1999). 

The results of OLS, FE and RE indicate that the explanatory variable, earnings (VRE) is highly significant at 1% level in explaining share in Nigerian stock market. The results show that earnings has a larger beta coefficient, absolute terms than Net book value (VRBV) after dummy variable was introduced to check difference in value relevance of accounting across the industries.
The coefficient of VRE is 0.104 when OLS is employed. It means that a unit change in earnings will lead to approximately 10 kobo change in share price. In order words, 1 kobo change in earnings will lead to approximately 10 kobo change in share price. Note that share prices are stated in Naira while earnings are stated in kobo.  However, earnings has higher beta coefficient under FE and RE. The beta coefficients of FE and RE are 0.10638 and 0.105337 respectively and are significant at 1% level.  This implies that a unit (1 kobo) change in earnings will lead to approximately 11 kobo change in share price in both FE and RE.  However, the beta coefficient of Net book value using OLS, FE and RE are: 0.000235, -0.000129 and 0.00049 respectively which are not significant.  As mention earlier, the reason for the insignificance of VRBV could be that the share price does not reflect the actual situation for the firm. Another reason could be that most investors still depend on the earnings performance rather than the Net Book Value. Besides, there may be other factors affecting a firm’s performance other than the variables 
The t tests of VRE are 8.71 and 8.95 for OLS and FE respectively while the t tests of VRBV are 0.00024 and -0.00013 for OLS and FE respectively. T test of comd is 2.28 for both OLS and FE signifying difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries. The t was performed to check the individual significance of each explanatory variable. For t test, any value less than 2 is not significant.  The t test further confirms that VRBV is not significant in explaining share price. Using OLS, R2  and  R2  squared bar results indicate significant difference in value relevance of accounting information  on share price (R2=0.1699, R2 squared bar =0.1643, Pro>F=0.0000).  While the overall R2 of FE and RE are equally significant R2 = 0.2772 and 0.17 respectively,   Accounting information is value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001).  F statistics measures the joint significance of all explanatory variables of the model used and in this case, it is highly significant.  This provides evidence to reject H0. Using the model of “earnings” the value relevance of accounting information of manufacturing sector differs significantly across the industries in Nigeria. This may be due to high investors’ confidence in the earnings of manufacturing sector, though they have low dividends payout culture than service sector.  
In all, accounting information of manufacturing sector is significant in explaining share price followed by accounting information of service sector. This is because the output of “earnings” improved when service sector was separated from manufacturing sector. The result is almost the same under OLS, FE and RE, that is 9.231, 9.108 and 9.69 respectively
4.3.2 Results and Interpretation of Value Relevance of Accounting Information across Industries: Dividends, Net Book Value and dummy  variable
	Table 4.5 Result of Model 4: Value Relevance of  Accounting Information across Industries: Dividends, Net Book Value and dummy  variable

	Dependent Variable: LDSP

	Estimator 
	OLS
	FE
	RE

	Variable
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob

	VRD
	.22297*
(12.41)
	0.000
	.22257*
(12.75)
	0.000
	.22245*
(12.64)
	0.000

	VRBV
	.00073
(0.94)
	0.350
	.000328
(0.42)
	0.672
	.00051
(0.65
	0.512

	Comd
	5.7422
(1.52)
	0.130
	5.545
(1.49)
	0.137
	5.633
(1.51)
	0.132

	Cons
	4.4134
(1.28)   
	0.202     
	4.7159
(1.39)
	0.166
	4.6117
(1.23)
	0.220

	R2
	0.2777
	
	
	
	
	

	Adj R2 
	0.2728
	
	
	
	
	

	Prob. F
	0.000
	
	0.0015
	
	
	

	R2  within
	
	
	0.2887
	
	0.2886
	

	R2between
	
	
	0.005
	
	0.0018
	

	R2overall
	
	
	0.2772
	
	0.2775
	

	Wald Ch2
	
	
	
	
	176.62
	

	Prb.Ch2
	
	
	
	
	0.0000
	

	No of obser.
	450
	450
	450

	Note:
* significant at the 1% level


Numbers in parentheses  are  t- values 


Z test in Prentices, bold face and italicized

LDSP = Last trading  day share price; VRD =Dividends per Share; VRBV = Net Book Value;

Comd =Dummy for company difference
LDSP are stated in naira while VRD and VRBV are in kobo


Source: Field Study (2010)
Table 4.5 shows the results of “dividends” model 3 of difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries using ordinary least Square (OLS), fixed effects (FE) and random effects (RE) to determine the influence of accounting numbers (dividends per share [VRD] and net book value[VRBV]) on share prices. Dummy variable was introduced to investigate the difference across the industries by grouping the companies to manufacturing and service sector. This method was adopted because running separate annual regressions was not feasible since there were too few firms per cross-section following (Brief and Zarowin, 1999 and Beisland et al, 2010). 
Using “dividends” model, the study finds significant differences between the two industry sectors in terms of the mean explanatory power of accounting information. 

The beta coefficients of Comd  using OLS, FE and RE are 5.742, 5.545 and 5.5633 respectively. It means  N1 change in dividends will lead to N5.74 change in share price using OLS and N1 change in dividends will N 5.55 to change share price under FE, while N1 change in dividends will lead to N5.56 change in share under RE. 
This model further confirms the insignificance of net book value in equity valuation in Nigerian stock market. The beta coefficient of Net book value using OLS, FE and RE are: 0.00073, -0.000328 and 0.00051 respectively which are not significant. As mentioned earlier, the reason for the insignificance of VRBV could be that the share price does not reflect the actual situation for the firm. Another reason could be that most investors still depend on the earnings performance rather than the Net Book Value. Besides, there may be other factors affecting a firm’s performance other than the variables included in the model. T tests for VRD are 12.41 and 12.75 for OLS and FE respectively. These are significant because t test value of 2 and above is significant.
The t test of the individual significance of each explanatory variable for comd are  1.528 and 1.49 for both OLS and FE. This means there is no significant individual difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries. For t test, any value less than 2 is not significant.  The t test of net book value (0.94 and 0.42 for OLS and FE) further confirms that VRBV is not significant in explaining share price. 

However, the R2 results of OLS, FE and RE   show that the explanatory variables VRD, VRBV and comd are significant (0.2777, 0.2772 and 0.2245 respectively, P>F =0.000). This implies that a unit (1 kobo) change in dividends will lead to approximately 27 kobo change in share price using both OLS and FE; and 22 kobo change in share price using RE. Accounting information is value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001).  F statistics measures the joint significance of all explanatory variables of the model used and in this case, it is highly significant.   This may be due to high investors’ confidence in the earnings of manufacturing sectors although; although they have low dividends payout culture than service sector. 
In all, accounting information of manufacturing sector is significant in explaining share price followed by accounting information of service sector. This is because the output of “dividends” improved when service sector was separated from manufacturing sector. The result is almost the same under OLS, FE and RE that is 5.742, 5.545 and 5.633 respectively.
In all, using both “earnings” model and “dividends” model, the study finds there are significant differences between the two sectors in terms of the mean explanatory power of accounting information. While “dividends” model reveals low value relevance over time for manufacturing, there is substantial increase for service sector.
Hypothesis 2

H0
There are no significant differences in perception about the value relevance of accounting information of manufacturing and service sectors in Nigeria; 
Decision: The aforesaid findings are contrary to the proposed hypothesis since F statistics is 0.000 – as stated above – and is highly significant. Hence, value relevance of accounting information is significantly different across the industries. Therefore, null hypothesis which states that value relevance of accounting information of firms in different industries listed on Nigerian Stock Market are not significantly different is rejected. Therefore H0 is rejected.
4.4
Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Negative Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation
4.4.1
Result and Interpretation of Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Negative Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation
	Table 4.6 Result of Model 3: Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Negative Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation

	Dependent Variable: LDSP

	Estimator 
	OLS
	FE
	RE

	Variable
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob
	Coef
	Prob

	VRE
	.11151*

(8.62)
	0.000
	.1133*

(8.82)
	0.000
	.1121

(8.71)
	0.000

	VRBV
	-.000371

(-0.04)
	0.965
	-.000401

(-0.47)
	0.636
	-.00016

(-.19)
	.0852

	Negearning
	4.546

(0.84)
	0.399
	4.1719

(0.78)
	0.434
	4.4179

(0.409)
	0.409

	Cons
	9.56014*

(4.78)
	0.000
	9.7015*

(4.91)
	0.000
	9.6366

(4.25)
	0.000

	R2
	0.1616
	
	
	
	
	

	Adj R2 
	0.1559
	
	
	
	
	

	Prob. F
	0.0064
	
	
	
	
	

	R2  within
	
	
	0.1675
	
	0.1674
	

	R2between
	
	
	0.0112
	
	0.0171
	

	R2overall
	
	
	0.1612
	
	0.1615
	

	Wald Ch2
	
	
	
	
	86.97
	

	Prb.Ch2
	
	
	
	
	0.0000
	

	Note:
* significant at the 1% level


Numbers in parentheses  are  t- values 


Z test in Prentices, bold face and italicized

LDSP = Last trading  day share price; VRE =Earnings per Share; VRBV = Net Book Value;

 negearning = negative earnings 
LDSP are stated in naira while VRE and VRBV are in kobo


Source: Field Study (2010)
Table 4.6 shows the aggregate market reaction to negative earnings. The earnings beta coefficients using OLS, FE and RE are 0.1115, 0.1133 and 0.1121 respectively. Approximately 1 kobo negative change in earnings will lead to 11 kobo negative change share price. The negative earnings has insignificant influence on the share price. The beta coefficients are 4.546, 4.172 and 4.4418 using OLS, FE and RE. The results of t test of individual verification of individual explanatory variables are not significant (0.84 and 0.78 for OLS and FE).   
Principally the study employed OLS to assess investors’ response to negative accounting earnings. The R2 are 0.1616, 0.1612, and 0.1615 for OLS, FE and RE respectively. They are significant with OLS Prob.> F = 0.0000. It means the proportion of the change in the dependent variable that can be attributed to the independent variables after a dummy variable was introduced to investigate the influence of negative earnings on share prices. Accounting number is value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001).  F statistics measures the joint significance of all explanatory variables of the model used and in this case, it is highly significant.  This provides to reject H0.
Hypothesis 3

There are no significant relationship between negative earnings and market values of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange
Decision: The aforesaid findings are contrary to the proposed hypothesis since F statistics is 0.000 – as stated above – and is highly significant. Hence, share prices are significantly affected by negative earnings. Therefore, null hypothesis which states there are no significant relationship between negative earnings and market values of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange is rejected. 
4.5
Presentation of Survey Data

In this section, data collected using questionnaires are classified, organized and analyzed.The section is divided into two parts. In the first part contains bio data as contained in Section A of the questionnaire. They include data on sex, highest educational qualification, professional qualification and years of working experience. The second part contains the presentation of responses on Sections B, C, D, E and F of the questionnaire.  This part includes data on perception of stock institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Profit and Loss Accounts, Balance Sheet, Value Added Statements, Cash Flow and other items of financial statement. 
	Table 4.7: Response to Questionnaire

	
	Frequency
	Percent
	Cumulative Percent

	
	Retrieved
	173
	57.7
	57.7

	
	Not Retrieved
	127
	42.3
	100.0

	
	Total
	300
	100.0
	


Source: Field Survey (2010)
Table 4.7 shows the response rate of the 300 copies of the questionnaire distributed for primary data. The total number of questionnaire retrieved were 173, while 127 were not retrieved. This means that the analysis of primary data is based on 57.7% rate of response. This response rate is considered adequate for the purpose of the study.
	Table:4.8  Profile of Respondents

	Item
	Frequency
	Percent
	Cumulative Percent

	Sex
	Male
	128
	73.7
	73.7

	 
	Female
	45
	26.3
	100.0

	Total
	173
	100.0 
	 

	Highest Acadamic Qualification
	
	
	

	HND
	21
	12.3
	12.3
	

	B.Sc/B.A.
	65
	37.4
	49.7
	

	MBA/MSc/MA
	72
	41.5
	91.2
	

	Ph.D
	15
	8.8
	100.0
	

	Total
	173
	100.0 
	 

	Work experience
	
	
	

	1-5 years
	60
	34.9
	34.9

	6-10 years
	28
	16.0
	50.9

	11-15 years
	35
	20.1
	71.0

	above 16 years
	50
	29.0
	100.0

	Total
	173
	100.0 
	 

	Profession

Investment Adviser
	9
	5.3
	5.3

	Stock broker
	87
	50.3
	55.6

	Portfolio Manager
	7
	4.1
	59.8

	Accountant
	44
	25.4
	85.2

	Financial Consultant/others
	26
	14.8
	100.0

	Total
	173
	100.0 
	 

	Investors
	
	
	

	Stock Brokers     1


	103
	59.5
	59.5
	

	Individuals          2
	70
	40.5
	100.0
	

	Total
	173
	100.0
	
	

	
	
	
	


Source: Field Survey (2010)
Table 4.8 above indicates that 128 are males which represent 73.7%, while 45 are females, which is 26.3%, giving a total of 173 respondents. The wide gap in ratio of male to female is due to the fact that in the professions of respondents, males usually outnumber females. The female minority in these professions is as a result of gender-based differences and Nigerian culture and among other reasons. However, the difference in the number of respondents does not have statistical significance on the result because the questions are not gender sensitive.   

The analysis of result of academic qualification reveals that 15 respondents (8.8%) have Ph.D, 72 respondents (41.5%) have MBA/MSc/MA, 65 respondents (37.4%) have MBA/MSc/MA, while 21 respondents (12.3%) have Higher National Diploma. This implies that the respondents are well educated. The high literacy level of respondents enables the researcher in getting good and quality responses. Furthermore, the work experience data show that many of the respondents are in the work experience bracket of 1 to 5 years; amounting to 34.9% of the total sample. 16% of respondents have between 6 to 10 years experience, those between 11 and 15 years experience are 20.1%, while 29% have above 16 years work experience.  The academic qualification and work experience of these respondents enhance the quality of their contributions. 
Respondents include 9 Investment Advisers (5.3%), 87 Stock Brokers (50.3%), 7 Portfolio Manager (4.1)%, 44 Accountants (25.4%) and 26 Financial Controllers (14.8%). The Investment Advisers, Stock Brokers and Portfolio Managers are proxies for Stock Brokers, which represent institutional investors or group 1 investors, while Accountants and Financial Controllers represent individual investors or group 2 investors. The data on educational qualifications reveal that most of the respondents have either first or both first and second degrees and are professionally competent to understand the content of the questionnaire and express unbiased opinion regarding value relevance of accounting information.
In the following sub-sections, data on sections B, C, D, E and F of the questionnaire are presented. The results of internal consistency of the scale of each item of financial statement are shown.  The mean (M) and the standard deviation (SD) of each question are also computed, followed by the results of Independent - Samples T Test and effect size for Independent-samples t-test if there is significant difference between individual and institutional investors.

4.5.1 Perception of Investors about Value Relevance of Profit and Loss Accounts
The tables 4.9, 4.10 and 4.11 present the results of data analysed about differences in perception of institutional investors and individual investors about value relevance of Profit and Loss Accounts.

	Table 4.9: Profit and Loss Accounts 

Reliability Statistics



	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.781
	7


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.10: Profit and Loss Accounts

Group Statistics

	 
	Investors
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	P_L
	1
	101
	4.88
	6.734
	.670

	 
	2
	72
	4.14
	6.495
	.765


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.11: Profit and Loss Accounts- Independent Samples Test


	
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	Df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference
	Std. Error Difference
	95% Confidence Interval of the Difference

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Lower 
	Upper 

	P_L
	Equal variances assumed
	1.896
	.170
	.730
	171
	.466
	.747
	1.023
	-1.273
	2.767

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	
	
	.734
	156.337
	.464
	.747
	1.017
	-1.262
	2.756


Source: Field Survey (2010)
Table 4.9 shows the internal consistency of the scale for items of Profit and Loss Accounts. The reliability is .781. The result of a reliability test that is close to .7 or higher is good. Table 4.10 depicts the mean of investors group 1(stock brokers) and group2 (individual investors), which are 4.88 and 4.14 respectively. The standard deviations are 6.734 and 6.495 for stock brokers and individual investors respectively.  Table 4.11 gives the result of Leven’s test for equality of variances. This test is to check whether the variation of scores for the two groups (stock brokers and individual investors) is the same. The result of this test determines which of the t-value to use. The rule is if significance value is larger than p=0.05, it means the variances for the two groups are the same and the assumption of equal variances has not been violated. In that case, to report the result of t-value, result provided in first line of the table should be used. In table4.11, significance level of Leven’s test is .170 which is larger than 0.05. In order to assess if there is significance difference between the two groups, the result for equal variance is chosen based on Leven’s result, and is .466. This result is larger than .05, meaning there is a no significant difference in the mean score for each of the two groups.       
The summarised result of an independent-sample t-test conducted to compare difference in perception of stock brokers and individuals investors about value relevance of accounting information is thus given. There is no significant difference in perception for stock brokers (M = 4.88, SD = 6.734), and individual investors [M= 4.14, SD = 6.495; t (171) = .730 p= . 466]. There is no significant difference in perception of institutional investors and individual investors about value relevance of Profit and Loss Accounts.
4.5.2 Perception of Investors about Value Relevance of Balance Sheet Statement 
The tables 4.12, 4.13 and 4.14 present the results of differences in perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Balance Sheet Statement.

	Table 4.12: Balance Sheet Statement
Reliability Statistics



	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.846
	6


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.13: Balance Sheet Statement
Group Statistics



	 
	Investors
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	B_S
	1
	101
	7.13
	14.781
	1.471

	 
	2
	72
	7.42
	14.991
	1.767


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.14: Balance Sheet  Statement

	
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	Df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference
	Std. Error Difference
	95% Confidence Interval of the Difference

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Lower 
	Upper 

	B_S
	Equal variances assumed
	.053
	.818
	-.126
	171
	.900
	-.288
	2.293
	-4.815
	4.239

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	 
	 
	-.125
	151.761
	.900
	-.288
	2.299
	-4.830
	4.254


Source: Field Survey (2010)
In Table 4.12, the reliability test of various items of Balance Sheet Statement is .846. This shows that the internal consistency of the scale is good, since it is higher than .7 which is the standard. Table 4.13 shows the mean of investors group 1(stock brokers) and group2 (individual investors), which are 7.13 and 7.42 respectively. The standard deviations are 14.781 and 14.991 for stock brokers and individual investors respectively.  Table 4.14 presents the result of Leven’s test for equality of variances. Leven’s test is to check whether the variation of scores for the two groups (stock brokers and individual investors) is the same. This result determines which of the t-value to use in interpretation of result.  If the value is larger than p=0.05, it means the variances for the two groups are the same and the assumption of equal variances has not been violated. Hence, the report the result of t-value provided in first line of the table is used. In table 4.14, significance level of Leven’s test is .818 and is larger than 0.05. Therefore, the result for equal variance chosen based on Leven’s result is .900. This result is larger than .05, meaning there is a no significant difference in the mean score for each of the two groups. 
The summarised result of an independent-sample t-test conducted to compare difference in perception of stock brokers and individuals investors about value relevance of accounting information is thus given. There is no significant difference in perception for stock brokers (M =7.13 , SD = 14.781), and individual investors [M= 7.42, SD = 14.991; t (171) =-.126, p= . 900]. There is no significant difference in perception of institutional investors and individual investors about value relevance of Profit and Loss Accounts.  
4.5.3 Perception of Investors about Value Relevance of Balance Value Added Statement 
The tables 4.15, 4.16 and 4.17 present the results of data analysed about differences in perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Value Added Statement.

	Table 4.15: Value Added Statement


Reliability Statistics



	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.887
	5


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.16: Value Added Statement

Group Statistics



	 
	Investors
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	VAS
	1
	100
	2.65
	.822
	.082

	 
	2
	70
	2.88
	.755
	.090


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.17:Value Added Statement

	
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	Df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference
	Std. Error Difference
	95% Confidence Interval of the Difference

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Lower 
	Upper 

	VAS
	Equal variances assumed
	.938
	.334
	-1.840
	168
	.068
	-.228
	.124
	-.473
	.017

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	
	
	-1.868
	156.191
	.064
	-.228
	.122
	-.469
	.013


Source: Field Survey (2010)
In Table 4.15, the reliability test of various items of Value Added Statement is .887. This shows that the internal consistency of the scale is good for the purpose of this study, because it is higher than .7 which is the standard. Table 4.16 shows the mean of stock brokers (investor 1) and individual investors (investor 2) are 2.65 and 2.88 respectively. The standard deviations are .822 and .755 for stock brokers and individual investors respectively.  The result of Leven’s test for equality of variances is presented in Table 4.17 is.334. The purpose of this test is to examine whether the variation of scores for the two groups is the same and determine the t-value to use. The result is larger than p=0.05, implying that the assumption of equal variances has not been violated. In order to assess if there is significance difference between the two groups, the result for equal variance is chosen based on Leven’s result, and is .068. This result is larger than .05, that is, there is no significant difference in the mean score for each of the two groups.       
The summary of the result of an independent-sample t-test conducted to compare difference in perception of stock brokers and individuals investors about value relevance of accounting information is thus presented. There is no significant difference in perception for stock brokers (M =2.65 , SD =.822 ), and individual investors [M=2.88 , SD =.755 ; t (168) =-1.840, p= .068]. There is no significant difference in perception of institutional investors and individual investors about value relevance of Profit and Loss Accounts. 
4.5.4 Perception of Investors about Value Relevance of Cash Flow Statement 
The tables 4.18, 4.19 and 4.20 present the results of data analysed about differences in perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Cash Flow Statement.

	Table 4.18: Cash Flow Statement


Reliability Statistics



	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.909
	3


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.19:Group Statistics Cash Flow Statement

	 
	Investors
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	Cash_F
	1
	101
	2.92
	.862
	.086

	 
	2
	69
	3.37
	.647
	.078


Source: Field Survey (2010)
	Table 4.20: Cash Flow

	 
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	Df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference

	 
	 
	
	
	Lower
	Upper

	Cash_F
	Equal variances assumed
	4.319
	.039
	-3.681
	168
	.000
	-.450

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	 
	 
	-3.881
	166.457
	.000
	-.450


Source: Field Survey (2010)
Calculated Effect Size for Independent-samples t-test
Effect size statistics provides an indication of the magnitude of the differences between stock brokers and individual investors. An effect size calculated from data is a descriptive statistic that conveys the estimated magnitude of a relationship without making any statement about whether the apparent relationship in the data reflects a true relationship in the population (Cohen,1988). In that way, effect sizes complement inferential statistics such as p-value. The method employed is eta squared. It ranges from 0 to 1 and represents the proportion of variance in the dependent variable that is explained by the independent (group) variable.
The formula for eta is as follows:

Eta squared  
= 
              t2

t2+ (N1 + N2 -2)

=
             -3.8812                 
-3.8812+ (101 + 69 -2)


=
0.082
The rules for interpreting this value are: .01= small effect, .06 = moderate effect, .14 – large effect (Cohen, 1988). The 0.082 Eta squared result shows that the effect size is moderate, that is, only 8% accounts for variance in perception by institutional and individual investors.  

Table 4.18 shows the internal consistency of the scale for cash-flow statement. The reliability is .909. The result of a reliability test that is close to .7 or higher is good. In table 4.19, the mean of investors group 1(stock brokers) and group2 (individual investors) are 2.92 and 3.37 respectively, while their standard deviations are .862 and .647 respectively.  Table 4.20 gives the result of Leven’s test for equality of variances. This tests whether the variation of scores for the two groups (stock brokers and individual investors) is the same. The result of this test determines which of the t-value to use. The rule is if sig. value is p=0.05 or less, it means the variances for the two groups are not the same. In the table given above, the significance level f or Leven’s test is .039. Since it is less than 0.05 the alternative result in the second line is used. To find out if there is significant difference between the two groups, the result for unequal variance is chosen based on Leven’s result, and is .000 which is less than .05, meaning there is a significant difference in the mean score on cash flow statement(dependent variable) for each of the two groups.       
The summarised result of an independent-samples t-test conducted to compare difference in perception of stock brokers and individual investors about value relevance of accounting information is thus given. There is significant difference in perception for stock brokers (M = 2.92, SD = .862), and individual investors [M= 3.37,SD = .647; t (166.46) = -3.881, p= .000]. The magnitude of the difference in the means is moderate.
CHAPTER FIVE

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1
Introduction

The focus of this chapter is to discuss the findings, the conclusion reached in the study and make recommendations based on research objectives and the overall perspective of the main findings.
Chapter five is arranged as follows:  section 5.2 summarizes research objectives and the analysis, section 5.3 presents theoretical findings and empirical findings, section 5.4 covers conclusions; section 5.5 shows recommendations; section 5.6  is on the contribution to knowledge  and section 5.7 makes suggestions for further study.
5.2  Summary of Work done
The primary purpose of this research is to investigate the dynamic relationship between market values and accounting numbers in the Nigerian stock market. Chapter one focuses on background to the study, statement of research problem, objective of the study, research questions, significance of the study, scope and limitations, summary of research method, sources of data and definition of terms. Chapter two presents the theoretical framework and relevant literature review and chapter three deals with research method adopted.     

In the previous related studies, two approaches were used to evaluate the value relevance of accounting information – aggregate stock market reaction and individual investor reaction to accounting information. This study adopted the two methods. The study used secondary data to investigate the aggregate Nigerian Stock Exchange reaction to accounting numbers and survey method in analyzing investors’ reaction to accounting information. The emphasis of survey research design is on the difference in perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of various items of financial statement. The users of accounting information were grouped into institutional investors and individual investors in Nigeria. 

The study population for aggregate market reaction to accounting information consisted of all the listed companies on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The total numbers of 213 companies were listed on Nigerian Stock Exchange as at 2008 (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2009:34). The study population for survey research consisted of all stockbrokers and individuals in two hundred and forty-five registered stock brokerage firms in Nigeria. There were total of two hundred and forty-six registered and active brokerage firms in Nigeria as at 2008 (The Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, 2009:28).  

Sample size for the aggregate market reaction to accounting information was 68 companies listed on Nigerian Stock Exchange during the period. The sample size was limited to 68 companies because of non availability of data. These problems arose either from missing data as a result of de –listing or acquisition or merger.   Missing data problems are peculiar with almost all databases, but deemed to be worse in developing economies (Nagel, 2001 and Negash,2008). Panel data are used to overcome the problems associated with missing data points (Negash, 2008). The panel data of 68 companies over a period of 7 years resulted in 476 observations. The period covered was 2002 to 2008. The choice of this period was necessitated by rapid growth in Nigerian stock market during the period.
In the survey study, the opinion of participants-the Stock Broker or investment adviser or Portfolio Manager and individual investors- from each   152 firms were considered (see sample selection calculation).  The opinion of the investment analysts(stock brokers, investment Advisers and Portfolio Managers) in these stock brokerage firms is important  because they are the primary users of financial accounting information and if accounting information is value relevant to them, then, it will be considered as value relevant to other institutional investors (Mangena, 2004).  The opinion of individual investors is also crucial to represent the interest of other investors. The view of institutional and individual investors about accounting data was obtained from 152 firms of stock brokerage firms and Nigerian Stock Exchange, Lagos. 
The initial sample size was supported by Yaro Yamani sample selection formula. The sample size of 152 with error limit of 5% was considered appropriate for this study. In spite of this, due to expected low response rate, a total number of 300 copies of the questionnaire were distributed. Out of the 300 copies of questionnaires sent out to various respondents, only 173 were duly completed and returned and all were used in the analysis. 
Sampling techniques adopted was the hybrid of purposive and random sampling techniques. It was expected that the combination of two methods and their respective advantages would provide a more rigorous and representative analysis. The procedure of the hybrid involved first purposively selecting the cities where registered and active dealing firms of Stock brokers were most concentrated and then randomly selecting the firms in those cities.
In effort to investigate the relation between share price and accounting information, secondary date were used. Proxies for accounting information used are earnings-per-share (EPS), dividends and book value. EPS, dividends and book value were obtained from the Nigerian Stock Exchange Factbook, Annual Financial Reports of companies quoted on Nigerian stock Exchange and the Nigerian Stock Market Annual. The data of share prices were collected from the Nigerian Stock Exchange database. 

Methods of gauging information content of these accounting numbers were Ordinary Least Square (OLS), Random Effects Model (REM) and Fixed Effects Model (FEM).   On the other hand, data of difference in perception of institutional and individual investors were analyzed with Independent – Samples T test using SPPS 15.0.
Chapter four discusses data analysis, presentation and interpretation. The hypotheses were tested and results presented.

Chapter five summarizes the theoretical and empirical findings of the study. It also includes conclusions, recommendations, limitations of study, policy implications and suggestions for further study.       
5.3   Summary of Findings
The summary of finding is divided into two sections. They are theoretical and empirical findings.
5.3.1 Theoretical Findings

The study finds out that there is a significant relationship between accounting information (earnings per share, dividends and net book value) and share price of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. Dividends are the most widely used accounting information for investment decisions in Nigeria, followed by earnings and Net Book Value. It is also discovered that significant but negative relationship exists between negative earnings and share prices of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. 
Accounting number is typically deemed to be value relevant if its estimated regression coefficient is significantly different from zero (Holthausen and Watts, 2001).  This may provide support for the proposition that: first, there is a positive relationship between earnings, dividends, book value and equity value in the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). These results are consistent with the findings of previous studies such as Pourheydari, Aflatooni and Nikbakhat (2008) and  Beisland, Hamberg and Novak (2010) among others.  Second, dividends have great information content (comparable to earnings and net book value). This is however contrary to the result of a study in the UK and US where it was found out that the analysts used Earnings Per Share (EPS) as the main basis for valuing shares (Blume and Husic, 1973 and Dimsdale and Prevezer, 1994). They assert that one of the most important components and widely used figures of financial report by the users of accounting information in general and investors in particular is earnings. Blume and Husic, 1973 finding indicates that earnings is a factor that is “priced” in the securities market. Earnings, which is also called ‘net income’ is an indicator of the profitability of the company. Earnings is the accounting information most analyzed and forecast by security analysts particularly, in the developed world, because it is oriented towards the interest of shareholders who are the important users of financial statement (Brow, 1993). Investors use accounting earnings to price stock because it is thought that the level of earnings and changes in earnings indicate relevant information about a company’s current and future ability to engender economic value that other investors will recognize and price aptly (Hawkins, 1998). Graham, King and Bailes (1998) examined the value relevance of financial accounting in Thailand prior to and during the decline in the value of the Baht in July 1997. The study examined the association between security prices from the Stock Exchange of Thailand and accounting book values and earnings from first quarter 1992 through third quarter 1997. Their results show that Thai earnings and book values are positively and significantly related to security prices although to a lesser extent than for United States and British firms. They claim Thailand book values and earnings each have incremental information content relative to the other. Ariff , Loh and Chew (1997) examined the relationship between earnings and share prices. Their results show that unexpected earnings changes are significantly associated with share price changes. Though, they claim that the strength of the earnings effect is not as evident as those reported in the more analytically-intensive developed stock markets.
The finding of difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries shows significant difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries. This is consistent with the finding of Still, Francis and Schipper (1999). They find no significant difference in the value relevance of earnings when comparing high-technology and low-technology stocks for the period 1952-1994. Although they find some evidence that balance sheet information explains a higher portion of the variability in prices for low-technology firms than for high-technology firms, they document significant increases over time in the explained variability of this relation for both samples of firms. They conclude that any evidence of a decline in value relevance cannot be attributed to the increasing number and importance of high-technology firms in the economy. 
Hand and Landsman (1999) discover that when earnings are negative, the mean coefficient on dividends and its t statistics both rise compared to the positive earnings case, but the mean R2 is unaffected.

5.3.2 Empirical Findings

This section focuses on the empirical findings from the study of value relevance of accounting information in the Nigerian Stock Market. This is arranged in accordance with research questions set and hypotheses formulated.
Hypothesis and Research Question 1
These deal with the aggregate stock market reaction to accounting information. The first part investigated relationship between stock price and earnings versus netbook value. Table 4.2 shows the results of Ordinary Least Square, Fixed Effect and Random Effect for the Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting Earnings and Book Value in Equity Valuation. In this table, earnings (VRE) are highly significant in explaining share prices. This output indicates that VRE has a larger beta coefficient, absolute terms than Net book value (VRBV).  
Table 4.3 shows the results of Ordinary Least Square, Fixed Effect and Random Effect for the Aggregate Market Reaction to Accounting dividends and Book Value in Equity Valuation. In this result, dividends (VRD) are highly significant in explaining share prices and have larger beta coefficient, absolute terms than Net book value (VRBV).  Earnings and dividends alone have about the same individual and incremental (given book value) explanatory power. 
Net book is not significant in explaining share price in the Nigerian stock market the reason for the insignificance of net book value could be that the share price does not reflect the actual situation for the firm. Another reason could be that most investors still depend on the earnings performance rather than the Net Book Value. Besides, there may be other factors affecting a firm’s performance other than the variables used in the study. 

Hypothesis and Research Question2 
These address difference in value relevance of accounting information across the industries.  Table 4.4 and table 4.5 show the results of earnings and dividends models of difference in value relevance of accounting information across industries using ordinary least square, fixed effects and random effects to determine the influence of dividends per share and net book value on share prices. Dummy variable was introduced to investigate the difference across the industries by grouping the companies to traditional and non-traditional. The study finds significant differences between the two industry sectors in terms of the mean explanatory power of accounting information. While “dividends” model reveals low value relevance over time for traditional industries, there is substantial increase for non-traditional industries. It is more appropriate to use book value to evaluate firms with small-sizes, intangible-intensities and reporting negative earnings than using earning.

Hypothesis and Research Question3 

These focus on aggregate market reaction to accounting negative earnings and book value in equity valuation. Table 4.6 shows the result of aggregate market reaction to accounting negative earnings and book value in equity valuation. The study finds the proportion of the change in the dependent variable that can be attributed to the independent variables after a dummy variable is introduced to investigate the influence of negative earnings on share prices is significant. The joint significance of all explanatory variables of the model used is highly significant. 
Hypothesis and Research Question 4

The result of an independent-sample t-test conducted to compare difference in perception of stock brokers and individuals investors about value relevance of accounting information reveals that there is no significant difference in perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Profit and Loss accounts, Balance Sheet and Value added statement. While the result of perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Cash flow statement shows a significant difference. Table 4.11, Table4.14, Table 4.17 and Table 4.20 show the results of independent-sample t-test conducted.
Specific Findings
1. The study finds out that there is a significant relationship between accounting information (earnings per share, dividends and book value) and share price of companies list on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. Dividends are the most widely used accounting information for investment decisions in Nigeria, followed by earnings and Net Book Value. For firms with permanent earnings, earnings has the greatest explanatory power of the three variables. Net book value explains only a small part of the variation of stock prices;
2. The study finds significant differences in value relevance of accounting   information across the industries in terms of the mean explanatory power of accounting information. The contribution of accounting information of traditional companies (manufacturing companies) to changes in share prices is more than non-traditional companies (service providing companies);  
3. It is also discovered that significant but negative relationship exists between negative earnings and share prices of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. Book value compensates for the negative earnings; 
4. The study observes that there is no significant difference between the perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of Profit and Loss accounts, Balance Sheet and Value Added Statement and
5. The result of perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Cash flow statement shows a significant difference.

5.4 Conclusion
From the results of above analysis, the following conclusions are reached:
That there is a significant relationship between accounting information and share prices of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. Dividends are the most widely used accounting information for investment decisions in Nigeria, followed by earnings and net book value. 
Therefore, the manipulated earnings (of which dividends are sub-sets) have large effects on share prices.  There is a significant negative relationship between negative earnings and share prices of companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The study concludes that there is no significant difference between the perception of institutional and individual investors about the value relevance of Profit and Loss accounts, Balance Sheet and Value Added Statement. However, the result of perception of institutional and individual investors about value relevance of Cash flow statement shows a significant difference.
Since the evidence indicates that accounting information plays a significant role in investment decision making and by implication, stock market development. Then, it is important to improve on the quality of accounting information which in turn is expected to affect economic development. This should make the preparers of accounting information to improve its quality.
5.5 Recommendations and Policy Relevance
Following the study findings, these recommendations are presented which may be of use to National Standard Setters, Nigerian Accounting Standards Board, preparers of accounting information, Nigerian Stock Exchange Regulators, investors and other emerging stock markets.
1. Due to the importance of earnings, dividends and net book value in investment decisions, the study recommends that all companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange should prepare Simplified Investor’s Summary Accounts (SISA) with emphasis on the most widely used accounting information along with the mandatory detailed financial statements to suit Nigerian peculiarities.  This is expected to remove information over-load particularly for non-accountants and non-financial analysts.   
2.  National accounting standard setters and preparers of accounting information should gear effort toward improving the quality of earnings information which is the most widely used accounting numbers in Nigeria for investment decision. This could be done by properly defining and reducing earnings management. This is because earnings management can be defined in different ways thereby making room for creative accounting. Managers who engage in the practice of manipulative earning management should   be identified and brought to book;

2. Investors should critically and objectively analyze the company’s overall characteristics when making investment decisions. This is because accounting information are not the same across the industries. Whether book value or earnings or dividends is value relevant depends on both the firm’s (and industry's) overall characteristics and its performance in the particular period; and
3. Investors should consider using net book value for investment decisions when earnings are negative since book value compensates for negative earnings. Investors should use book values of equity to evaluate firms with small-sizes and high intangible assets. 
The findings of this study have important policy implications for Nigerian accounting standard setters, preparers of accounting information and government policy makers- particularly the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) which serves as the apex regulatory body. Positive results of the test serve as proof of the quality of accounting standards, accounting practice and the local stock exchange market in Nigeria in view of the fact that, quality of accounting standards influences the users’ perception of quality of financial information. High quality accounting standards and their proper enforcement are perceived as providing relevant and reliable financial information. 

The evidence indicates that accounting information- particularly earnings- plays a significant role in investment decision making and by implication, stock market development. This should make the preparers of accounting information to improve its quality. This is because accountants are in competition with other providers of information and if they do not provide useful, cost-effective information, the accounting function would decline over time (Scot, 2003). This shall have negative impact on the Nigerian economy. Furthermore, lot of hard work is required by stock market regulators and accounting standard setters to properly educate the Nigerian investors about differences in attribute accounting information across the industries.
 Nigerian Accounting Standards Board and Securities and Exchange Commission   which are regulatory bodies should urge the quoted companies to comply with preparation and publication of SISA.  Adoption of SISA by companies is expected to increase investors’ confidence in Nigerian Stock Market. 

The implications of the aforementioned are enormous for foreign and local investors who make their decisions based on accounting information. Stakes are equally high for policy makers who consider information as very important to stock market development, which is very important for the well-functioning of the economy.  
5.6 Contribution to knowledge

This work investigated the value relevance of accounting information, namely: dividends, earnings and book value.
1. Our most important contribution is that the study shows empirically that when book value is a poor indicator of worth of firm, dividends have the greatest value relevance of the three measures. It is more appropriate to use book value to evaluate firms with small-sizes, intangible-intensities and reported negative earnings than using earning.
2. This research extends the emerging academic literature on value relevance of accounting information in the developing world and introduces important insights from the accounting literature. It also contributes to knowledge in the area of capital research related to emerging markets. Almost all evidence in this area is obtained from the US or Western European countries which have relatively developed markets compared to most developing countries. Emerging Nigerian Stock market evidence is extremely important because it provides a laboratory to test existing theories under extreme conditions not existent in developed countries. This should be useful for future research.
3.  The adapted valuation model in this study can explain price in Nigerian   Stock Market.   The study provides an exploratory scheme which stock market decision makers can use to generate informed profitable decisions. 
4.  The study shows the need for the bodies regulating the way accounting information is prepared and served to the public to project simplified- user- friendly versions –Simplified Investor’s Summary Accounts (SISA).
5.6.1
Statement of Limitation 

In the course of this study the following constraints are encountered:

1. Limitation of scope as a result of non availability of data: The study therefore focuses on the period (2002 to 2008) before the collapse in the Nigerian Stock Exchange in order to determine the aggregate Nigerian stock market reaction to accounting numbers due to dearth of data. As a result, the companies included in the study are limited to 68 companies listed on the First tier market of the Nigerian Stock Exchange during the period of study.
2. This study focuses on only long term association between accounting information and firms’ market values. The investigation could also be done by creating a short window around the time accounting information is released.
3. Stock market refers to entire market of equity for trading the shares and derivatives of the various companies, but this study is just on shares of the listed companies.
5.7  Suggestions for Further Studies
The limitations encountered in this study have prompted the following suggestions:

1.
This study only examines 68 of the companies listed on the First tier market of the Nigerian Stock Exchange market from 2002 to 2008. Future research could examine the value relevance of accounting information of companies listed on second tier and emerging market of the Nigerian Stock Exchange.
2.
This study only covers a period of seven years from 2002 to 2008 because of   dearth of data. Future studies could increase the scope and consider the value relevance of accounting information period before and immediately after the collapse in the Nigerian stock market.
3.
The conclusions of survey study are based on the opinions of Stock brokers, Investment Advisers, Portfolio Managers, Accountants and others.  Only few participants in survey study are non-professional. Future research could consider only the opinions of non-professional investors about their perception about value relevance of accounting information and 
4.
This study focuses on long term association between accounting information and firms’ market values. Future research could measure value relevance of accounting information in short term event studies.    
5.       As a result of presence of other factors that affect changes in share prices, future study can include impact of other information sources like rumour, insider trading and noise among others on share prices.     
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Appendix I

Research Questionnaire

Department of Accounting,

College of Business and Social Sciences,

Covenant University,

Canaanland,

 Ota, Ogun State,

Nigeria.
Dear Respondent,

The primary objective of this questionnaire is to obtain information on a study of the extent of Value Relevance of Accounting Information in Nigeria for investment decision. This study is part of the requirements for the award of a Ph.D. degree in Accounting.

Kindly complete this questionnaire as honestly as you can. I wish to assure you that your answers will be treated with strict confidence and used mainly for the aforementioned academic purpose. Your anticipated co-operation is highly appreciated. 

Yours sincerely,

Oyerinde, Dorcas Titilayo

Section A: Personal Data

 Please tick appropriate response or fill the gap
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1. Investor:  Individual        
Stock Broker
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3. Age: Below 20yrs               21-35yrs                  36-50yrs
4. Highest Academic Qualification:

HND       B.Sc/B.A.        MBA/MSc/MA        PhD       Other(specify)………………….
5. Professional Qualifications:   ......................................................

6. Profession:   Investment Adviser
     Stock broker        Portfolio Manger       Accountant         Financial Consultant         Other(specify)………………….
7. Work experience 1-5yrs           6- 10yrs          Above 11 - 15 yrs        
above 16yrs
Questionnaire on value relevance of financial statements
Sections B and E:
These sections assess the value relevance of various items of Profit and Loss account,  Balance Sheet, Value Added Statement and Cash Flow statement. Rate the extent to which the following accounting information numbers are used for investment decisions: 

Please tick ( as appropriate. 

 Scale: Very strong (4) Strong (3) Fairly strong (2) Weak (1) Very weak (0) 

Section B: 
	S/N.
	Profit and Loss accounts
	4
	3
	2
	1
	0

	8.
	Turnover
	
	
	
	
	

	9.
	Gross profit
	
	
	
	
	

	10.
	Net operating expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	11.
	Profit after tax
	
	
	
	
	

	12.
	Earnings per share
	
	
	
	
	

	13.
	Dividend per share
	
	
	
	
	

	14.
	Dividend cover
	
	
	
	
	


Section C:

	S/N.
	Balance Sheet accounts
	4
	3
	2
	1
	0

	15.
	Share Capital 
	
	
	
	
	

	16.
	Shareholders’ Fund
	
	
	
	
	

	17.
	Trade Investment
	
	
	
	
	

	18.
	Net asset per share
	
	
	
	
	

	19.
	Capital Structure
	
	
	
	
	


Section D:

	S/N.
	Value Added Statement
	4
	3
	2
	1
	0

	20.
	Value added from operations
	
	
	
	
	

	21.
	Bought-in materials and services
	
	
	
	
	

	22.
	Gross value added
	
	
	
	
	

	23.
	Retained profit for future growth
	
	
	
	
	

	24.
	Employee wages and salaries
	
	
	
	
	


Section E:

	S/N.
	Cash Flow Statement
	4
	3
	2
	1
	0

	25.
	Cash flow from operating activities                                                          
	
	
	
	
	

	26.
	Cash flow from investing activities       
	
	
	
	
	

	27.
	Cash flow from financing activities
	
	
	
	
	


Section F:

This section assesses the value relevance of various other items of financial statement. Rate the extent to which the following accounting information numbers are used for investment decisions: 

Please tick ( as appropriate. 

 Scale: Very strong (4) Strong (3) Fairly strong (2) Weak (1) Very weak (0)

	S/N.
	Other Items of Financial Statements 
	4
	3
	2
	1
	0

	28.
	Statement of Account policies
	
	
	
	
	

	29.
	Notes to the accounts
	
	
	
	
	

	30.
	The auditors reports
	
	
	
	
	

	31.
	Five – year financial summary
	
	
	
	
	

	32.
	The group financial statements
	
	
	
	
	


33.
If  a company of interest to you announced payment of  200% increase in dividends, what will be your reaction? Positive Reaction          Negative Reaction         No reaction 

34.   If a company of interest to you reported 200% increase in earnings, what will be your reaction?  Positive Reaction          Negative Reaction         No reaction 

35.
If a company of interest to you reported increase in Net Book Value, what will be your reaction?  Positive Reaction          Negative Reaction         No reaction 

36. Please write your general comments about the value relevance of accounting information in Nigeria for investment decisions………………………………………………..  
…..……………….…………………………………………………………………
Appendix II
 The List of Companies and Industries Sampled 

	No
	Industry
	Company

	1
	Agriculture
	Okomu Oil Palm Plc.

	2
	Agriculture
	Presco Plc.

	3
	Automobile and Tyre
	Dunlop  Nigeria Plc.

	4
	Automobile and Tyre
	Incar Nigeria Plc.

	5
	Automobile and Tyre
	RT Briscoe (Nigeria) Plc.

	6
	Banking
	Access Bank Plc.

	7
	Banking
	Afribank Nigeria Plc.

	8
	Banking
	First Bank of Nigeria Plc.

	9
	Banking
	GTBank Plc.

	10
	Banking
	Intercontinental Bank Plc.

	11
	Banking
	United Bank of Africa Plc.

	12
	Banking
	Union Bank of Nigeria Plc.

	13
	Breweries
	Guniness Nigeria Plc.

	14
	Breweries
	International Brew.Plc.

	15
	Breweries
	Nigerian Breweries Plc.

	16
	Building Materials
	Ashaka Cement Plc.

	17
	Building Materials
	Cement Co. of Northern Nigeria Plc.

	18
	Chemical and Paints
	Berger Paint Plc.

	19
	Chemical and Paints
	DN Meyer Plc.

	20
	Chemical and Paints
	CAP Plc.

	21
	Chemical and Paints
	I.P.W.A. Plc.

	22
	Chemical and Paints
	Nig- German Chem. Plc.

	23
	Computer & Office Equipments
	NCR (Nig.) Plc.

	24
	Conglomerate
	A.G. Leventis ( Nigeria) Plc

	25
	Conglomerate
	Chellarams.

	26
	Conglomerate
	John Holt Plc.

	27
	Conglomerate
	P Z industries Plc.

	28
	Conglomerate
	UAC of Nigeria Plc.

	29
	Conglomerate
	Unilever Nigeria

	30
	Construction
	Cappa and D'alberto Plc

	31
	Construction
	Costain (WA) Plc

	32
	Construction
	Julius Berger Nig. Plc

	33
	Engineering
	Linterlinked Plc

	34
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	7up Bottling Co Plc

	35
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	Cadbury Nig. Plc

	36
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	Flour Mills Nigeria Plc

	37
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	Nestle Nigeria Plc

	38
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	Nigerian Bottling Company Plc

	39
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	N. Nig. Flour Mills Plc

	40
	Food/Beverages & Tobacco
	UTC Nigeria Plc

	41
	Health care
	GlaxoSmithKline Cons. Nigeria Plc

	42
	Health care
	May&Baker Nigeria Plc

	43
	Health care
	Morison Industries Plc

	44
	Health care
	Neimeth International Pharm. Plc.

	45
	Indusrial/Domestic Products
	BOC Gases Nigeria Plc.

	46
	Indusrial/Domestic Products
	First Aluminium Nigeria Plc.

	47
	Indusrial/Domestic Products
	Nigerian Enamel Plc.

	48
	Insurance
	AIICO Insurance Plc

	49
	Insurance
	Cornerstone Insurance Co. Plc.

	50
	Insurance
	Crusader Insurance Plc

	51
	Insurance
	Guinea Insurance Plc

	52
	Insurance
	Mutual Benefits Assurance Plc.

	53
	Insurance
	NEM Insurance Company (Nig.) Plc.

	54
	Insurance
	Niger Insurance Company Plc.

	55
	Insurance
	Prestige Assurance Plc.

	56
	Insurance
	Royal Exchange Assurance Plc

	57
	Packaging
	Avon Crowncaps  and Containers Plc.

	58
	Packaging
	Beta Glass Company Plc.

	59
	Packaging
	Nampak Nigeria Plc.

	60
	Packaging
	Poly Products Nigeria Plc.

	61
	Petroleum
	ConOil Nigeria Plc.

	62
	Petroleum
	Mobil Oil Nigeria Plc.

	63
	Petroleum
	Oando Plc.

	64
	Printing and Publishing
	Academy Press Nigeria Plc.

	65
	Printing and Publishing
	Longman Nigeria Plc.

	66
	Printing and Publishing
	University Press Plc.

	67
	Managed Funds
	C & I Leasing Plc

	68
	Real Estate
	UACN Property Dev.  Co. Plc.


Appendix III
Dealing Members of the Nigerian Stock Exchange

1.
Adamawa Securities Limited 
2.
Adonai Stockbrokers Limited 
3.
Afribank Securities Limited 
4.
Afrinvest (West Africa) Limited 
5.
Alangrange Securities Limited 
6.
Altrade Securities Limited, 
7.
Amyn Investments Limited 
8.
Anchoria Investment and Securities Limited, 
9.
Apel Asset & Trust Limited 
10.
APT Securities & Funds Limited 
11.
Associated Asset Managers Limited 
12.
Atlass Portfolio Limited 
13.
Belfry Stockbrokers Limited 
14.
Bestlink Investment Limited 
15.
Bestworth Assets & Trust Limited 
16.
BFCL Assets & Securities Limited
17.
BIC Securities Limited 
18.
Bytofel Trust & Securities Limited 
19.
Calyx Securities Limited 
20.
Camry Securities Limited 
21.
Capital Assets Limited 
22.
Capital Bancorp Limited, 
23.
Capital Express Securities Limited 
24.
Capital Trust Brokers Limited, 
25.
Cashcraft Asset Management Limited 
26.
Cashville Investment & Securities Limited 
27.
Centre-Point Investments Limited, 
28.
Century Securities Limited, 
29.
Citi Investment Capital Limited 
30.
City-Code Trust & Investment Company Limited 
31.
Clearview Investment Company Limited, 
32.
Colvia Securities Limited, 
33.
Compass Investment and Securities Limited 
34.
Consolidated Investments Limited, 
35.
Cordros capital limited 
36.
Core Trust and Investment Limited 
37.
Covenant Securities & Asset Management Limited 
38.
Cowry Asset Management Limited 
39.
Cradle Trust Finance & Securities Limited 
40.
Crane Securities Limited 
41.
Crossworld Securities Limited 
42.
Crown Capital Limited 
43.
CSL Stockbrokers Limited, 
44.
Dakal Services Limited 
45.
Davandy Finance & Securities Limited 
46.
DBSL Securities Limited 
47.
De-Canon Investment Limited 
48.
Deep Trust Investment Limited 
49.
Delords Securities Limited 
50.
Dependable Securities Limited 
51.
Diamond Securities Limited

52.
Dominion Trust Limited 
53.
Dynamic Portfolios Limited 
54.
ECL Asset Management Limited 
55.
Emerging Capital Limited 
56.
EMI Capital Resources Limited
57.
Empire Securities Limited 
58.
Enterprise Stockbrokers Plc 
59.
Epic Investment Trust Limited 
60.
Equity Capital Solutions Limited 
61.
ESS Investment & Trust Limited 
62.
Eurocomm Securities Limited 
63.
Eurocomm Securities Limited 
64.
Excel Securities Limited 
65.
Express Discount Asset Management Limited 
66.
Express Portfolio Services Limited, 
67.
F & C Securities Limited 
68.
Falcon Securities Limited, 
69.
FBC Trust & Securities Limited 
70.
FBN Securities Limited 
71.
Fidelity Securities Limited, 
72.
Fidelity Finance Company Limited, 
73.
Financial Trust Company Nigeria Limited 
74.
FinBank Securities & Assets Management Limited 
75.
Finmal Finance Services Limited 
76.
First Alstate Securities Limited 
77.
First Atlantic Securities Limited, 
78.
First Equity Securities Limited 
79.
First Integrated Capital Management Limited, 
80.
First Stockbrokers Limited 
81.
FIS Securities Limited, 
82.
Fittco Securities Limited 
83.
Foresight Securities & Investment Limited 
84.
Forte Financial Limited 
85.
Forthright Securities & Investments Limited, 
86.
Fortress Capital Limited 
87.
Fountain Securities Limited 
88.
FSDH Securities Limited, 
89.
Funds Matrix & Assets Management Limited 
90.
Future View Financial Services Limited, 
91.
Gem Assets Management Limited 
92.
Genesis Securities & Investment Limited 
93.
Gidauniya Investment & Securities Limited 
94.
Global Asset Management (Nig.) Limited 
95.
GMT Securities & Asset Management Limited 
96.
Golden Securities Limited, 
97.
Gosord Securities Limited 
98.
Greenwich Securities Limited 
99.
GTB Securities Limited 
100.
GTI Capital Limited 
101.
Harmony Securities Limited 
102.
Heartbeat Investments Limited 
103.
Hedge Securities & Investments Co. Limited 
104.
Heritage Capital Market Limited 
105.
Horizon Stockbrokers Limited, 
106.
ICMG Securities Limited, 
107.
Icon Stockbrokers Limited 
108.
Imperial Asset Management Limited 
109.
IMTL Securities Limited 
110.
Independent Securities Limited, 
111.
Integrated Trust and Investments Limited 
112.
Intercontinental Securities Limited, 
113.
International Capital Securities Limited 
114.
International Standard Securities Limited, 
115.
Interstate Securities Limited 
116.
Investment Centre Limited 
117.
Investors & Trust Company Limited, 
118.
ITIS Securities Limited 
119.
Kakawa Asset Management Limited 
120.
Kapital Care Trust & Securities Limited 
121.
Kinley Securities Limited 
122.
Kofana Securities and Investments Limited 
123.
Kundila Finance Services Limited, 
124.
Laksworth Investments & Securities Limited 
125.
Lambeth Trust & Investment Company Limited 
126.
LB Securities Limited 
127.
Lead Securities & Investment Limited 
128.
Lighthouse Asset Management Limited, 
129.
Lion stockbrokers limited 
130.
LMB Stockbrokers Limited, 
131.
Mact Securities Limited 
132.
Magnartis Finance and Investment Limited 
133.
Mainland Trust Limited 
134.
Maninvest assets management plc 
135.
Marimpex Finance & Investment Co. Limited 
136.
Marina securities limited 
137.
Marriot Securities & Investment Co. Limited 
138.
Maven Asset Management Limited 
139.
Maxifund Investments & Securities Limited, 
140.
Mayfield Invesments Limited, 
141.
MBC Securities Limited, 
142.
MBL Financial Services Limited, 
143.
Mega Equities Limited 
144.
Mercov Securities Limited 
145.
Meristem Securities Limited 
146.
Midas Stockbrokers Limited, 
147.
Midland Capital Markets Limited 
148.
Mission Securities Limited, 
149.
Molten Trust Limited 
150.
Monument Securities and Finance Limited, 
151.
MorganCapital Securities Limited 
152.
Mountain Investment & Securities Limited 
153.
Mutual Alliance Investments and Securities Limited, 
154.
Networth Securities & Finance Limited, 
155.
Newdevco Investments & Securities Company Limited 
156.
Nigerian International Securities Limited 
157.
Nigerian Stockbrokers Limited 
158.
Nova Finance & Securities Limited 
159.
Oasis Capital Portfolio Limited 
160.
Omas Investments & Trust Company Limited, 
161.
Options Securities Limited, 
162.
PAC Securities Limited 
163.
Partnership Investment Company Limited, 
164.
Peace Capital Market Limited 
165.
Peninsula Asset Management & Investment Co. Ltd 
166.
Perfecta Investment Trust Limited, 
167.
Phronesis Securities Limited 
168.
Pilot Securities Limited 
169.
Pinefields Investment Services Limited 
170.
PIPC Securities Limited, 
171.
Pivot Trust and Investment Company Limited 
172.
Platinum Capital Limited 
173.
PML Securities Company Limited 
174.
Portfolio Advisers Limited 
175.
Primewealth Capital Limited 
176.
Professional Stockbrokers Limited, 
177.
Profund Securities Limited 
178.
Prominent Securities Limited, 
179.
Prudential Securities Limited 
180.
PSI Securities Limited 
181.
Pyramid securities ltd 
182.
Quantum Securities Limited 
183.
Rainbow Securities and Investment Co. Limited 
184.
Readings Investment Limited 
185.
Redasel Investment Limited 
186.
Regency assets management limited 
187.
Rencap Securities (Nigeria) Limited 
188.
Resano Securities Limited 
189. Reward Investments and Services Limited
190.
Rivtrust Securities Limited 
191.
Rostrum Investment & Securities Limited 
192.
Rowet Capital Management Limited 
193.
Royal Crest Finance Limited 
194.
Santrust Securities Limited, 
195.
Securities Solutions Limited, 
196.
Securities Trading & Investments Limited 
197.
Security swaps limited 
198.
Shalom Investment & Securities Transactions Limited 
199.
Shelong Investment Limited 
200.
Sigma Securities Limited
201.
Signet Investments & Securities Limited
202.
Sikon Securities and Investment Trust Ltd 
203.
Skyebrokers Limited 
204.
SMADAC Securities Limited 
205.
Solid-Rock Securities & Investment Limited
206.
Spring Trust & Securities Limited 
207.
Springboard Trust & Investment Limited 
208.
Stanbic IBTC Stockbrokers Limited 
209.
Standard Alliance Capital & Asset Management Limited 
210.
Standard union securities limited 
211.
Stanwal Securities Limited, 
212.
Strategy and Arbitrage Limited 
213.
Summa Guaranty & Trust Co. Plc. 
214.
Summit Finance Company Limited, 
215.
Support Services Limited, 
216.
Supra Commercial Trust Limited 
217.
TFS Securities & Investment Limited 
218.
The Bridge Securities Limited 
219.
Tiddo Securities Limited 
220.
Tomil Trust Limited, 
221.
Topmost Securities Limited 
222.
Tower Asset Management Ltd 
223.
Tower Securities & Investment Co. Limited 
224.
Trade Link Securities Limited 
225.
Traders Trust & Investment Company Limited 
226.
TransAfrica Financial Services Limited 
227.
Transglobe Investment & Finance Co. Limited, 
228.
Transworld Investment & Secuities Limited 
229.
Tropics Securities Limited, 
230.
Trust Yields Securities Limited 
231.
Trusthouse Investments Limited 
232.
TRW Stockbrokers Limited
233.
UBA Stockbrokers Limited 
234.
UIDC Securities Limited 
235.
UNEX Capital Limited 
236.
Union Capital Markets Limited 
237.
Valmon Securities Limited, 
238.
Valueline Securities & Investments Limited 
239.
Vetiva Securities Limited 
240.
Vision Trust & Investment Limited 
241.
Wizetrade Capital & Asset Management Limited 
242.
WSTC Financial Services Limited, 
243.
WT Securities Limited 
244.
Yobe Investment & Securities Limited 
245.
Yuderb Investments & Securities Limited 
246.
Zenith securities limited 
.

  Appendix IV
Detailed Output of Analyzed Data
ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL1
SUMMARIZED VARIBLES OVER ENTIRE PANEL 

Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value
. xtsum ldsp vre vrd vrbv year

Variable         |      Mean  
 Std. Dev.       Min        Max |    Observations

-----------------+--------------------------------------------+----------------

ldsp     overall |   19.68628   
37.47032          0         331.19 |     
N =     476

          between |               
33.611       .9571429   178.8257 |        n =      68

          within  |              
16.9881     -94.41514   172.7249 |      T =       7

                 |                                            |

vre      overall |  80.66243   
152.6249       -931        1008 |    
 N =     474

          between |             
117.5091       -161        628.4286 |      n =      68

         within  |             

98.10852    -689.3376   702.6624 |   T-bar = 6.97059

                 |                                            |

vrd      overall |  44.82846    
102.402           0        
 910 |     
N =     475

         between |             
85.77734          0  
  585.1429 |     n =      68

         within  |             

56.62224     -294.3144  615.9713 |   T-bar = 6.98529

                 |                                            |

vrbv     overall |  597.8265   1876.358      -1095      28607 |     N =     451

         between |             
1344.335  -185.2857     8701.5 |     n =      68

         within  |             

1343.021  -7514.673   20503.33 | T-bar = 6.63235

                 |                                            |

year     overall |      2005  
 2.002104       2002       2008 |     N =     476

         between |                   

 0        2005       2005 |     n =      68

         within  |             

2.002104        2002       2008 |     T =       7

ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL1

DETAILED RESULTS OF OLS OF MODEL1
regress ldsp vre vrbv

      Source |     
  SS       
 df       MS              
     Number of obs =     449

-------------+------------------------------           

     F(  2,   446) =   42.54

       Model 
|  92450.0213     2
  46225.0107        Prob > F      =  0.0000

    Residual | 
 484603.082   
446 
 1086.55399         R-squared     =  0.1602

-------------+------------------------------  
        
     Adj R-squared =  0.1564

       Total | 
 577053.103   448 
 1288.06496         Root MSE      =  32.963

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

        ldsp |      Coef.   Std. Err.   
   t    P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vre |   .1073168   .0119412     8.99   0.000     .0838487    .1307849

        vrbv |    -.00004   .0008513    -0.05   0.963     -.001713     .001633

       _cons |   10.34729   1.767651     5.85   0.000     6.873336    13.82125

ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL1

DETAILED RESULTS OF FIXED EFFECTS OF MODEL1

Ldsp=share price; vre= earnings per share; vrbv=net book value
xtreg ldsp vre vrbv,fe

Fixed-effects (within) regression          Number of obs     =   449

Group variable: crossid                    
  Number of groups =  68

R-sq:  within  = 0.0310                    
Obs per group: min =         1

       between = 0.2347                            
            avg =       6.6

       overall = 0.1500                                       
 max =         7

                                                
F(2,379)           =      6.07

corr(u_i, Xb)  = 0.3131            
Prob > F           =    0.0025

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

        ldsp |      Coef.   Std. Err. 
    t     P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vre |    .028978   .0090823     
3.19    0.002     .0111199     .046836

        vrbv |   .0005757   .0005969     
0.96    0.335    -.0005979    .0017493

       _cons |   15.19569   1.033615    
14.70  0.000     13.16335    17.22803

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

     sigma_u |  31.315034

     sigma_e |  16.851334

         rho |  .77544857   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

F test that all  u_i=0:     F(67, 379) =    19.81           Prob > F = 0.0000

ANALYSING THE AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL1

DETAILED RESULTS OF RANDOM EFFECTS OF MODEL1

Ldsp=share price; vre= earnings per share; vrbv=net book value
xtreg ldsp vre vrbv,re

Random-effects GLS regression            Number of obs       =       449

Group variable: crossid                         Number of groups   =        68

R-sq:  within  = 0.0308                         Obs per group: min =         1

       between = 0.2446                 

                avg =       6.6

       overall = 0.1546                                       
   max =         7

Random effects u_i ~ Gaussian                   Wald chi2(2)       =     20.58

corr(u_i, X)       = 0 (assumed)                Prob > chi2       
 =    0.0000

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

        ldsp |      Coef.   Std. Err.      z    P>|z|     [95% Conf. Interval]

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vre |   .0380333   .0089116     4.27   0.000     .0205669    .0554997

        vrbv |   .0005402   .0005913     0.91   0.361    -.0006187     .001699

       _cons |   14.86891   3.567921     4.17   0.000     7.875913    21.86191

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

     sigma_u |  27.602101

     sigma_e |  16.851334

         rho |  .72847994   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL1

RESULTS OF HAUSMAN TEST

xtreg ldsp vre vrbv,fe

estimates store fe1

xtreg ldsp vre vrbv,re

estimates store re1

hausman fe1 re1

                 ---- Coefficients ----

             |      (b)          (B)            (b-B)     sqrt(diag(V_b-V_B))

             |      fe1          re1         Difference          S.E.

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vre |     .028978     .0380333       -.0090554        .0017528

        vrbv |    .0005757     .0005402        .0000356        .0000817

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                           b = consistent under Ho and Ha; obtained from xtreg

            B = inconsistent under Ha, efficient under Ho; obtained from xtreg

    Test:  Ho:  difference in coefficients not systematic

                  chi2(2) = (b-B)'[(V_b-V_B)^(-1)](b-B)

                          =       29.88

                Prob>chi2 =      0.0000

ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL2

DETAILED RESULTS OF OLS OF MODEL2
Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value
regress ldsp vrd vrbv

      Source |       SS             df        MS           
  
   Number of obs =     450

-------------+------------------------------           

        F(  2,   447) =   84.33

       Model |   158106.663     2     79053.3317   
        Prob > F      =  0.0000

    Residual |   419014.337   447    937.392252                  R-squared     =  0.2740

-------------+------------------------------                             Adj R-squared =  0.2707

       Total |      577121        449    1285.34744                  Root MSE      =  30.617

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

        ldsp |      Coef.   
    Std. Err.      t  
  P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vrd |   .2272854    .0177673    12.79   
0.000     .1923676    .2622031

        vrbv |    .000569    .0007746     0.73   
0.463    -.0009534    .0020913

       _cons |   9.039735    1.62066     5.58  
 0.000     5.854676    12.22479

-----------------------------  -------------------------------------------------

ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL2

DETAILED RESULTS OF FIXED EFFECTS OF MODEL2
Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value
xtreg ldsp vrd vrbv,fe

Fixed-effects (within) regression               Number of obs      =       450

Group variable: crossid                            Number of groups   =        68

R-sq:  within  = 0.0251                           Obs per group: min =         1

       between = 0.4232                                                      avg =       6.6

       overall = 0.2601                                                       max =         7

                                                     F(2,380)           =      4.89

corr(u_i, Xb)  = 0.4563                         Prob > F           =    0.0080

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

        ldsp |      Coef.     Std. Err.            t       P>|t|      [95% Conf. Interval]

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vrd |   .0523429    .018694        2.80    0.005     .0155862    .0890996

        vrbv |   .0006935   .0005947      1.17    0.244    -.0004757    .0018627

       _cons |   15.17849   1.077988     14.08   0.000     13.05892    17.29806

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

     sigma_u |  30.327374

     sigma_e |  16.882498

         rho |  .76342444   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

F test that all u_i=0:     F(67, 380) =    16.27             Prob > F = 0.0000

ANALYSING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF MODEL2

DETAILED RESULTS OF RANDOM EFFECTS OF MODEL2
Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value
xtreg ldsp vrd vrbv,re 7/7/10

. xtreg ldsp vrd vrbv,re

Random-effects GLS regression             Number of obs      =       450

Group variable: crossid                         Number of groups   =        68

R-sq:  within  = 0.0244                         Obs per group: min =         1

         between = 0.4388                  

                avg =       6.6

            overall = 0.2713                                       
  max =         7

Random effects u_i ~ Gaussian                   Wald chi2(2)       =     30.68

corr(u_i, X)       = 0 (assumed)                      Prob > chi2        =    0.0000

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

        ldsp |      Coef. 
   Std. Err.      z       P>|z|      [95% Conf. Interval]

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vrd |   .0934751    .0175911     5.31    0.000     .0589972     .127953

        vrbv |    .000657    .0005929     1.11    0.268     -.000505     .001819

       _cons |    14.0522    3.181373     4.42   0.000     7.816825    20.28758

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

     sigma_u |  23.817399

     sigma_e |  16.882498

         rho |   .6655837   (fraction of variance due to u_i)
HAUSMAN TEST

xtreg ldsp vrd vrbv,fe

estimates store fe1

xtreg ldsp vrd vrbv,re

estimates store re1

hausman fe1 re1

. hausman fe1 re1

                 ---- Coefficients ----

             |      (b)          (B)            (b-B)     sqrt(diag(V_b-V_B))

             |      fe1          re1         Difference          S.E.

-------------+----------------------------------------------------------------

         vrd |    .0523429     .0934751       -.0411322        .0063261

        vrbv |    .0006935      .000657        .0000365        .0000461

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                           b = consistent under Ho and Ha; obtained from xtreg

            B = inconsistent under Ha, efficient under Ho; obtained from xtreg

    Test:  Ho:  difference in coefficients not systematic

                  chi2(2) = (b-B)'[(V_b-V_B)^(-1)](b-B)

                          =       42.57

                Prob>chi2 =      0.0000
DETAILED RESULTS OF MODEL3

INVESTIGATING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO NEGATIVE EARNINGS: USING OLS
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. regress ldsp vre vrbv negearning




                                                                              

       _cons     9.560142    1.99864     4.78   0.000     5.632196    13.48809

  negearning     4.545989   5.380487     0.84   0.399    -6.028331    15.12031

        vrbv    -.0000371   .0008515    -0.04   0.965    -.0017106    .0016365

         vre     .1115092   .0129347     8.62   0.000     .0860885      .13693

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      t    P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

       Total    577053.103   448  1288.06496           Root MSE      =  32.973

                                                       Adj R-squared =  0.1559

    Residual    483826.935   445  1087.25154           R-squared     =  0.1616

       Model    93226.1677     3  31075.3892           Prob > F      =  0.0000

                                                       F(  3,   445) =   28.58

      Source         SS       df       MS              Number of obs =     449

. regress ldsp vre vrbv negearning


DETAILED RESULTS OF MODEL3

INVESTIGATING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO NEGATIVE EARNINGS: USING FIXED EFFECTS
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. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv negearning,fe




F test that all u_i=0:     F(6, 439) =     3.03              Prob > F = 0.0064

                                                                              

         rho    .04505309   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

     sigma_e    32.530297

     sigma_u    7.0657898

                                                                              

       _cons     9.701589    1.97521     4.91   0.000     5.819546    13.58363

  negearning     4.171881   5.322086     0.78   0.434    -6.288054    14.63182

        vrbv    -.0004014   .0008477    -0.47   0.636    -.0020674    .0012647

         vre     .1132793   .0128492     8.82   0.000     .0880257     .138533

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      t    P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

corr(u_i, Xb)  = -0.0228                        Prob > F           =    0.0000

                                                F(3,439)           =     29.45

       overall = 0.1612                                        max =        68

       between = 0.0112                                        avg =      64.1

R-sq:  within  = 0.1675                         Obs per group: min =        60

Group variable: year                            Number of groups   =         7

Fixed-effects (within) regression               Number of obs      =       449

. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv negearning,fe


DETAILED RESULTS OF MODEL3

INVESTIGATING AGGREGATE MARKET REACTION TO NEGATIVE EARNINGS: USING RANDOM EFFECTS
[image: image29.emf] 
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. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv negearning,re




                                                                              

         rho    .00774016   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

     sigma_e    32.530297

     sigma_u    2.8730978

                                                                              

       _cons      9.63655   2.267459     4.25   0.000     5.192411    14.08069

  negearning     4.417927   5.349224     0.83   0.409    -6.066359    14.90221

        vrbv    -.0001588   .0008484    -0.19   0.852    -.0018216     .001504

         vre     .1121088   .0128779     8.71   0.000     .0868686    .1373489

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      z    P>|z|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

corr(u_i, X)       = 0 (assumed)                Prob > chi2        =    0.0000

Random effects u_i ~ Gaussian                   Wald chi2(3)       =     86.97

       overall = 0.1615                                        max =        68

       between = 0.0171                                        avg =      64.1

R-sq:  within  = 0.1674                         Obs per group: min =        60

Group variable: year                            Number of groups   =         7

Random-effects GLS regression                   Number of obs      =       449

. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv negearning,re


DETAILED RESULTS OF MODEL4

a)  Investigating Value Relevance of Accounting Information across Industries Using OLS

Ldsp=share price; vre= earnings per share; vrbv=net book value
[image: image30.emf] 
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Source 
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. regress ldsp vre vrbv comd




                                                                              

       _cons     2.864244   3.719485     0.77   0.442    -4.445694    10.17418

        comd     9.231157   4.042629     2.28   0.023      1.28614    17.17617

        vrbv     .0002354   .0008558     0.28   0.783    -.0014466    .0019173

         vre     .1042201   .0119623     8.71   0.000     .0807104    .1277298

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      t    P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

       Total    577053.103   448  1288.06496           Root MSE      =  32.808

                                                       Adj R-squared =  0.1643

    Residual    478990.645   445  1076.38347           R-squared     =  0.1699

       Model    98062.4579     3   32687.486           Prob > F      =  0.0000

                                                       F(  3,   445) =   30.37

      Source         SS       df       MS              Number of obs =     449

. regress ldsp vre vrbv comd


ANALYSING USING FIXED EFFECTS

b) Ldsp=share price; vre= earnings per share; vrbv=net book value
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Fixed-effects (within) regression               Number of obs      = 
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4
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. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv comd,fe




F test that all u_i=0:     F(6, 439) =     3.06              Prob > F = 0.0060

                                                                              

         rho    .04542309   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

     sigma_e    32.361373

     sigma_u    7.0592703

                                                                              

       _cons       3.0387   3.671076     0.83   0.408    -4.176368    10.25377

        comd     9.107856   3.987942     2.28   0.023     1.270024    16.94569

        vrbv    -.0001294   .0008517    -0.15   0.879    -.0018034    .0015446

         vre     .1063822   .0118906     8.95   0.000     .0830127    .1297518

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      t    P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

corr(u_i, Xb)  = -0.0221                        Prob > F           =    0.0000

                                                F(3,439)           =     31.29

       overall = 0.1696                                        max =        68

       between = 0.0122                                        avg =      64.1

R-sq:  within  = 0.1762                         Obs per group: min =        60

Group variable: year                            Number of groups   =         7

Fixed-effects (within) regression               Number of obs      =       449

. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv comd,fe


c) ANALYSING USING RANDOM EFFECTS

Ldsp=share price; vre= earnings per share; vrbv=net book value
[image: image32.emf] 
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Random-effects GLS regression                   Number of obs      = 
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. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv comd,re




                                                                              

         rho     .0160115   (fraction of variance due to u_i)

     sigma_e    32.361373

     sigma_u    4.1280778

                                                                              

       _cons     2.997141   4.001031     0.75   0.454    -4.844735    10.83902

        comd     9.168545   4.001056     2.29   0.022     1.326618    17.01047

        vrbv     .0000489   .0008508     0.06   0.954    -.0016188    .0017165

         vre     .1053377   .0118852     8.86   0.000     .0820431    .1286324

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      z    P>|z|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

corr(u_i, X)       = 0 (assumed)                Prob > chi2        =    0.0000

Random effects u_i ~ Gaussian                   Wald chi2(3)       =     93.12

       overall = 0.1698                                        max =        68

       between = 0.0164                                        avg =      64.1

R-sq:  within  = 0.1761                         Obs per group: min =        60

Group variable: year                            Number of groups   =         7

Random-effects GLS regression                   Number of obs      =       449

. xtreg ldsp vre vrbv comd,re


d) Investigating Value Relevance of Accounting Information across Industries: USING OLS

Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value

[image: image33.emf] 
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4


5


0


. regress ldsp vrd vrbv comd




                                                                              

       _cons     4.413391   3.455834     1.28   0.202     -2.37835    11.20513

        comd      5.74223   3.790007     1.52   0.130    -1.706261    13.19072

        vrbv      .000731   .0007809     0.94   0.350    -.0008037    .0022656

         vrd     .2229681    .017969    12.41   0.000     .1876537    .2582824

                                                                              

        ldsp        Coef.   Std. Err.      t    P>|t|     [95% Conf. Interval]

                                                                              

       Total        577121   449  1285.34744           Root MSE      =  30.573

                                                       Adj R-squared =  0.2728

    Residual    416868.753   446  934.683303           R-squared     =  0.2777

       Model    160252.247     3  53417.4158           Prob > F      =  0.0000

                                                       F(  3,   446) =   57.15

      Source         SS       df       MS              Number of obs =     450

. regress ldsp vrd vrbv comd


e) Investigating Value Relevance of Accounting Information across Industries

ANALYSING USING FIXED EFFECTS

Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value

ANALYSING USING RANDOM EFFECTS

Ldsp=share price; vrd= dividends per share; vrbv=net book value

Output of Difference in Perception of Institutional Investors and Individual about the Value Relevance of Accounting Information
Results Profit and Loss Accounts

Reliability Test


Case Processing Summary

	 
	N
	%

	Cases
	Valid
	166
	96.0

	 
	Excluded(a)
	7
	4.0

	 
	Total
	173
	100.0


a  Listwise deletion based on all variables in the procedure.

Reliability Statistics

	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.781
	7



Item Statistics

	 
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	N

	Turnover
	3.3795
	.80563
	166

	Gross profit
	3.2952
	.76490
	166

	Net operating expences
	2.9940
	.87037
	166

	Profit after tax
	3.7410
	.56064
	166

	Earning per share
	3.6024
	.73756
	166

	Dividend per share
	3.5422
	.75158
	166

	Dividend cover
	3.1084
	.95995
	166


Item-Total Statistics

	 
	Scale Mean if Item Deleted
	Scale Variance if Item Deleted
	Corrected Item-Total Correlation
	Cronbach's Alpha if Item Deleted

	Turnover
	20.2831
	10.325
	.412
	.771

	Gross profit
	20.3675
	9.882
	.549
	.744

	Net operating expences
	20.6687
	9.883
	.451
	.765

	Profit after tax
	19.9217
	10.921
	.506
	.758

	Earning per share
	20.0602
	10.008
	.548
	.745

	Dividend per share
	20.1205
	10.082
	.516
	.751

	Dividend cover
	20.5542
	8.782
	.599
	.733



Scale Statistics

	Mean
	Variance
	Std. Deviation
	N of Items

	23.6627
	13.110
	3.62074
	7


Independent-sample T-Test
	Profit and Loss Accounts

Group Statistics

	 
	New2q6
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	P_L
	1
	101
	4.88
	6.734
	.670

	 
	2
	72
	4.14
	6.495
	.765


Results Balance Sheet
Reliability Test

Case Processing Summary

	 
	N
	%

	Cases
	Valid
	151
	87.3

	 
	Excluded(a)
	22
	12.7

	 
	Total
	173
	100.0


a  Listwise deletion based on all variables in the procedure.


Reliability Statistics

	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.846
	6



Item Statistics

	 
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	N

	share Capital
	3.3444
	.73979
	151

	Shareholders' Fund
	3.3444
	.79201
	151

	Trade Investment
	2.8013
	.89458
	151

	Net asset per share
	3.0199
	.88295
	151

	Trade investment
	2.7417
	.96238
	151

	Capital Structure
	3.2715
	.82409
	151



Item-Total Statistics

	 
	Scale Mean if Item Deleted
	Scale Variance if Item Deleted
	Corrected Item-Total Correlation
	Cronbach's Alpha if Item Deleted

	share Capital
	15.1788
	11.321
	.586
	.829

	Shareholders' Fund
	15.1788
	10.908
	.621
	.822

	Trade Investment
	15.7219
	9.789
	.749
	.795

	Net asset per share
	15.5033
	10.585
	.595
	.827

	Trade investment
	15.7815
	9.839
	.666
	.814

	Capital Structure
	15.2517
	11.056
	.556
	.834



Scale Statistics

	Mean
	Variance
	Std. Deviation
	N of Items

	18.5232
	14.784
	3.84506
	6


t-Test


Group Statistics

	 
	New2q6
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	B_S
	1
	101
	7.13
	14.781
	1.471

	 
	2
	72
	7.42
	14.991
	1.767

	
	
	
	
	
	


Independent Samples Test

	
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference
	Std. Error Difference
	95% Confidence Interval of the Difference

	 
	 
	Lower
	Upper
	Lower
	Upper
	Lower
	Upper
	Lower
	Upper
	Lower

	B_S
	Equal variances assumed
	.053
	.818
	-.126
	171
	.900
	-.288
	2.293
	-4.815
	4.239

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	 
	 
	-.125
	151.761
	.900
	-.288
	2.299
	-4.830
	4.254


Result of Value Added Statement
Reliability Test


Case Processing Summary

	 
	N
	%

	Cases
	Valid
	161
	93.1

	 
	Excluded(a)
	12
	6.9

	 
	Total
	173
	100.0


a  Listwise deletion based on all variables in the procedure.


Reliability Statistics

	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	.887
	5



Item-Total Statistics

	 
	Scale Mean if Item Deleted
	Scale Variance if Item Deleted
	Corrected Item-Total Correlation
	Cronbach's Alpha if Item Deleted

	Value added from operations
	10.6646
	10.449
	.744
	.859

	Bought-in materials and services
	11.2484
	10.438
	.759
	.855

	Gross value added
	10.9255
	10.669
	.813
	.845

	Retained profit for future growth
	10.4658
	11.650
	.603
	.889

	Employee wages and salaries
	11.2050
	10.126
	.731
	.863



Scale Statistics

	Mean
	Variance
	Std. Deviation
	N of Items

	13.6273
	16.210
	4.02620
	5


t-Test  Value Added Statement

Group Statistics

	 
	New2q6
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	VAS
	1
	100
	2.65
	.822
	.082

	 
	2
	70
	2.88
	.755
	.090


Independent Samples Test

	 
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	Df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference
	Std. Error Difference
	95% Confidence Interval of the Difference

	 
	 
	
	Upper
	Lower

	VAS
	Equal variances assumed
	.938
	.334
	-1.840
	168
	.068
	-.228
	.124
	-.473
	.017

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	 
	 
	-1.868
	156.191
	.064
	-.228
	.122
	-.469
	.013


 Cash Flow Statement

Reliability Statistics

	Accounting information 
	Cronbach's Alpha
	N of Items

	Cash flow  statement
	.909
	3

	
	
	



Item-Total Statistics

	 
	Scale Mean if Item Deleted
	Scale Variance if Item Deleted
	Corrected Item-Total Correlation
	Cronbach's Alpha if Item Deleted

	Cash flow from operating activities
	6.0592
	2.770
	.799
	.884

	Cash flow from investing activities
	6.2367
	2.765
	.811
	.874

	Cash flow from financing activities
	6.2722
	2.699
	.842
	.849


T-Test

Group Statistics

	 
	New2q6
	N
	Mean
	Std. Deviation
	Std. Error Mean

	Cash_F
	1
	101
	2.92
	.862
	.086

	 
	2
	69
	3.37
	.647
	.078


Independent Samples Test

	 
	 
	Levene's Test for Equality of Variances
	t-test for Equality of Means

	 
	 
	F
	Sig.
	T
	Df
	Sig. (2-tailed)
	Mean Difference
	Std. Error Difference
	95% Confidence Interval of the Difference

	 
	 
	
	Upper
	Lower

	Cash_F
	Equal variances assumed
	4.319
	.039
	-3.681
	168
	.000
	-.450
	.122
	-.691
	-.208

	 
	Equal variances not assumed
	 
	 
	-3.881
	166.457
	.000
	-.450
	.116
	-.678
	-.221
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